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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
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PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING: 

APPLICATION OF THE NEW MEXICO OIL 
CONSERVATION DIVISION FOR AN ORDER 
REQUIRING MARALO, LLC, TO REMEDIATE 
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LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 
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&ECB BEFORE: DAVID R. CATANACH, Hearing Examiner 
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Santa Fe, New Mexico Santa px

ranc,'sDrive 
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This matter came on f o r hearing before the New 

Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , DAVID R. CATANACH, 

Hearing Examiner, on Thursday, November 20th, 2003, a t the 

New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources 

Department, 1220 South Saint Francis Drive, Room 102, Santa 

Fe, New Mexico, Steven T. Brenner, C e r t i f i e d Court Reporter 

No. 7 f o r the State of New Mexico. 
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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

3:47 p.m.: 

EXAMINER CATANACH: A l l r i g h t , a t t h i s time w e ' l l 

c a l l the hearing back t o order and c a l l Case Number 13,142, 

which i s the A p p l i c a t i o n of the New Mexico O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n f o r an order r e q u i r i n g Maralo, LLC, t o remediate 

hydrocarbon contamination a t an abandoned w e l l and b a t t e r y 

s i t e , Lea County, New Mexico. 

C a l l f o r appearances i n t h i s case. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Ga i l MacQuesten r e p r e s e n t i n g the 

O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: A d d i t i o n a l appearances? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n . I'm 

appearing today i n as s o c i a t i o n w i t h Mr. Rick Strange. Mr. 

Strange i s an att o r n e y , he's a member of the Texas bar. He 

resides i n Midland, Texas, and t h e i r f i r m i s the Cotton, 

Bledsoe, Tighe and Dawson f i r m . Together we represent 

Maralo, LLC. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Any a d d i t i o n a l appearances? 

MR. SANDOVAL: Mr. Examiner, my name i s David 

Sandoval. I'm an attor n e y w i t h Heard, Robins, Cloud, Lubel 

and Greenwood here i n Santa Fe, and I'm here appearing on 

behalf of the surface owner, Jay Anthony. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Any a d d i t i o n a l appearances? 
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How many witnesses do we have today? Ms. 

MacQuesten. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: I have one witness, W i l l i e 

Olson, f o r the OCD. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: We have two p o t e n t i a l witnesses t o 

be sworn. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, and do you have any 

witnesses, Mr. — 

MR. SANDOVAL: I ' d l i k e t o present Mr. Anthony 

f o r some shor t testimony. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. Can I get a l l the 

p o t e n t i a l witnesses t o stand and be sworn i n a t t h i s time? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

EXAMINER CATANACH: You may proceed, Ms. 

MacQuesten. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: I would c a l l W i l l i a m Olson. 

WILLIAM C. OLSON, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MacQUESTEN: 

Q. Would you please s t a t e your name f o r the record? 

A. My name i s W i l l i a m C. Olson. 

Q. And where do you work? 
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A. I'm employed by the Environmental Bureau of the 

O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , which i s a d i v i s i o n of the 

Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department. 

Q. And i n what capacity are you employed there? 

A. I'm a senior h y d r o l o g i s t f o r the Environmental 

Bureau. 

Q. Could you review b r i e f l y your r e l e v a n t education 

and work experience? 

A. I have a bachelors i n geology and a master's i n 

hydrology from the New Mexico I n s t i t u t e of Mining and 

Technology, and I've been employed over a p e r i o d of 17 

years w i t h the State of New Mexico, 15 of t h a t w i t h the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n as a h y d r o l o g i s t . 

Q. Now, h y d r o l o g i s t involves the i n v e s t i g a t i o n of 

water? 

A. I t involves i n v e s t i g a t i o n of groundwater 

contamination, as w e l l as remediation of s o i l s , a v a r i e t y 

of types of s i t e s from f i x e d f a c i l i t i e s , r e f i n e r i e s and gas 

p l a n t s , t o o i l f i e l d f i e l d l o c a t i o n s and other types of 

f a c i l i t i e s as w e l l , o i l f i e l d f a c i l i t i e s . 

Q. How many s i t e - r e m e d i a t i o n cases have you reviewed 

or been in v o l v e d with? 

A. Soil-remediation s i t e s , I've worked on thousands 

of s o i l - r e m e d i a t i o n s i t e s and p i t - c l o s u r e s i t e s , e s p e c i a l l y 

up on the San Juan Basin, a large number up t h e r e , and also 
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worked on a l o t of s o i l - r e m e d i a t i o n s i t e s , r e f i n e r i e s , as 

p a r t of cleanup of contaminated groundwater and the 

associated s o i l contamination t h a t i s th e r e as w e l l . 

MS. MacQUESTEN: I would tender Mr. Olson as an 

expert i n hydrology, water and surface contamination and 

remediation. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Are there any objecti o n s ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Olson i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Ms. MacQuesten) Mr. Olson, are you f a m i l i a r 

w i t h the i n v e s t i g a t i o n of contamination a t a former tank 

b a t t e r y s i t e near the Humble State Well Number 3 i n Lea 

County? 

A. Yes, I am. I'm c u r r e n t l y the s t a f f person 

responsible f o r the oversi g h t of t h i s s i t e . 

Q. I f I may approach, I have a packet of e x h i b i t s . 

Mr. Olson, how d i d the contamination issue a t 

t h a t s i t e come t o the a t t e n t i o n of OCD? 

A. This o r i g i n a l l y came t o the a t t e n t i o n through Mr. 

Jay Anthony, who had f i l e d a complaint w i t h the D i s t r i c t 

O f f i c e i n Hobbs, New Mexico, and t h a t was — complaint was 

o r i g i n a l l y f i l e d w i t h Donna Williams, who was the 

environmental inspector f o r the OCD Hobbs D i s t r i c t O f f i c e . 

Q. I s she s t i l l w i t h the OCD? 

A. No, she's no longer employed by the OCD. 
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Q. Would you please take a look a t what has been 

marked as E x h i b i t Number 1? I s t h a t a copy of the 

complaint t h a t Donna Williams took regarding t h i s case? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And what i s the date of t h a t complaint? 

A. There's — The i n i t i a l date on the complaint i s 

October 6th of 1999. 

Q. I f you would look t o the middle of t h a t page, she 

describes an i n v e s t i g a t i o n and f i n d i n g s . What l o c a t i o n or 

l o c a t i o n s are described there? 

A. Described on t h i s i s — p a r t i c u l a r l y , i s an o l d 

Maralo lease l o c a t i o n , and i t also r e f e r s t o the S h e l l "A" 

State Number 1 s i t e i n the middle p a r t of the form here, 

which i s the a c t u a l s i t e i n v e s t i g a t i o n t h a t she conducted. 

I t r e f e r s t o the tank bottom — or not a tank bottom but a 

tank b a t t e r y f a c i l i t y a t the Humble State Number 3. 

Q. Which of those l o c a t i o n s i s r e l e v a n t t o our case 

today? 

A. Based on the in f o r m a t i o n we have, i t ' s t he Humble 

State Number 3, i s the l o c a t i o n f o r which we have records 

on i n the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n associated w i t h t h a t 

f a c i l i t y . 

Q. That i s the l o c a t i o n where she describes 

"asphalty material"? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. Does t h i s i n v e s t i g a t i o n complaint form r e f e r t o 

any a c t i o n s t h a t were taken regarding t h i s complaint? 

A. Yes, a t the bottom of the page, r i g h t under the 

s e c t i o n on "Follow-Up", i t l i s t s a November 15th, 1999, 

date where she had sent a l e t t e r requesting a remediation 

plan f o r determining the extent of contamination a t the 

s i t e . 

And also i t discusses a c a l l which they had, a 

conference c a l l w i t h Maralo, on December 1st of 1999, 

regarding the l e t t e r t h a t they had sent. 

Q. Would you please take a look a t what has been 

marked as E x h i b i t Number 2? I s t h a t the l e t t e r t h a t i s 

r e f e r r e d t o i n the complaint document? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. I n o t i c e there are a l o t of s c r i b b l e s on t h i s 

l e t t e r . Are those s c r i b b l e s made by you? 

A. No, t h i s i s some n o t a t i o n s t h a t — This i s the 

way the l e t t e r came from the D i s t r i c t O f f i c e . They had 

made some n o t a t i o n s on phone numbers of people and 

r e l a t i o n s t o the s i t e . 

Q. What does Ms. Williams ask f o r i n t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. I n t h i s l e t t e r , she i s s t a t i n g her observations 

from her f i e l d i n s p e c t i o n and i s asking t h a t Maralo perform 

an i n v e s t i g a t i o n t o determine the extent of contamination 

a t the l o c a t i o n and determine what remediation may be 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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necessary a t the s i t e . 

Q. Does she also request a v e r i f i c a t i o n of the 

l e g a l s on the tank b a t t e r y locations? 

A. Yes, she d i d . 

Q. What — Do you know whether Maralo made a 

response t o t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. The response appears t o be — t o t h i s l e t t e r , a t 

l e a s t what we have from our f i l e s , i s j u s t i n her — on 

E x h i b i t Number 1 a t the bottom of the "Follow-Up" where i t 

notes t h a t they had a conference c a l l about t h i s l e t t e r a t 

t h a t p o i n t . 

Q. Did they submit a cleanup plan? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. Did they provide v e r i f i c a t i o n of the l e g a l s on 

the t a n k - b a t t e r y locations? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. Was f u r t h e r i n v e s t i g a t i o n done of t h i s s i t e ? 

A. Further i n v e s t i g a t i o n has been done a t t h i s s i t e 

by the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , as w e l l as by the land 

owner, Mr. Jay Anthony. 

Q. What i n v e s t i g a t i o n d i d Mr. Anthony perform, 

f i r s t ? 

A. The f i r s t t h i n g t h a t we had come i n a f t e r t h i s 

was a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of h i s t h a t had sampled a water w e l l 

on the property t h a t i s r i g h t i n the approximate l o c a t i o n 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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or adjacent t o the former tank b a t t e r y . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, a t t h i s time we're 

going t o ob j e c t t o the hearsay testimony w i t h regards t o 

whatever searches or conduct was i n i t i a t e d by the 

landowner. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: We don't i n t e n d t o o f f e r t h a t 

i n t o evidence, but we o f f e r t h i s only t o i n d i c a t e what 

f u r t h e r a c t i o n was taken by OCD i n response t o Mr. 

Anthony's s u b m i t t i n g the r e s u l t s . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Do you propose t o intro d u c e 

E x h i b i t 5? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Yes, we w i l l . a t some p o i n t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I s t h i s not a study done by Mr. 

Seay on behalf of the landowner? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: I t i s , but i t ' s not the study 

we're t a l k i n g about a t t h i s p o i n t . The f i r s t study was 

simply of the water samples. The second study was a s o i l -

contamination study. 

MR. KELLAHIN: When we come t o i t , Mr. Examiner, 

we w i l l o b j e c t t o E x h i b i t 5. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: You may proceed. 

Q. (By Ms. MacQuesten) When Mr. Anthony presented 

h i s water samples t o you, what a c t i o n d i d OCD take? 

A. Those samples t h a t show some elevated c h l o r i d e s 

i n groundwater from t h a t w e l l , the petroleum screen t h a t 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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they had done on the water sample was l i m i t e d , so a t t h a t 

p o i n t the D i v i s i o n arranged w i t h Mr. Anthony t o come back 

and sample the w e l l . 

Q. Were you involved i n t a k i n g t h a t sample? 

A. Yes, I obtained t h a t sample from the water w e l l . 

Q. What was the r e s u l t of your sample? 

A. I t v e r i f i e d t h a t we d i d have some c h l o r i d e 

contamination of groundwater above the New Mexico Water 

Q u a l i t y Control Commission standard, and i t d i d not confirm 

any petroleum contamination of the water. 

Q. So your t e s t r e s u l t s corroborated the r e s u l t s 

t h a t Mr. Anthony had submitted t o you? 

A. Yes, i t d i d . And we also — We wanted t o check 

t o make sure t h a t we d i d n ' t have also some of the benzene, 

toluene, ethylbenzene, xylene contamination of the water, 

which i s t y p i c a l l y found along w i t h produced water. 

Q. What d i d you see when you d i d your s i t e v i s i t ? 

Could you describe the scene f o r us? 

A. When we a r r i v e d a t the s i t e , Mr. Anthony poin t e d 

out what was the former l o c a t i o n of the tank b a t t e r y , and 

the appearance of three p i t s , one t o the south of the tank 

b a t t e r y , and there was two p i t s located t o the west of the 

tank b a t t e r y . 

And then there's an area t o the — there's a road 

t h a t crosses the s i t e r i g h t t h e r e , and then t o the n o r t h of 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

14 

t h a t road there was surface contamination of l a r g e chunks 

of a s p h a l t i c - t y p e o i l , o i l y m a t e r i a l . 

Q. Was there any equipment a t the s i t e ? 

A. No, there was not. 

Q. This asphalty area w i t h chunks, how l a r g e an area 

are we t a l k i n g about? 

A. I d i d n ' t make a n o t a t i o n of the exact s i z e of 

t h a t area. I ' d estimate maybe an acre or so a t t h a t p o i n t . 

I don't r e a l l y have s p e c i f i c i n f o r m a t i o n on the exact s i z e 

of t h a t , though. I t covered an area t h a t had been cleared, 

and i t appeared t h a t the m a t e r i a l had been spread across or 

disked across a t t h a t p o i n t . 

Q. How b i g were these chunks of asphalt t h a t you 

saw? 

A. M a t e r i a l s range from smaller pieces up t o , you 

know, maybe S o f t b a l l s i z e or maybe a l i t t l e l a r g e r . 

Q. You t e s t i f i e d t h a t there were t h r e e p i t s ? 

A. Yes, there was three p i t s a t the l o c a t i o n as 

w e l l . 

Q. What d i d they look l i k e ? 

A. I t appeared t h a t they had been covered or b u r i e d 

a t some p o i n t i n time, and the o i l had resurfaced around 

the rims of these p i t s . There was a hard, a s p h a l t i c o i l 

r i m around each of the p i t s . 

Q. Did you see where the water w e l l was located? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. The water w e l l was located next t o the road, 

along the area of where the — j u s t n o r t h of where the tank 

b a t t e r y was located. 

Q. A l l of these areas t h a t you're d e s c r i b i n g , d i d 

they a l l — are they a l l on a s i n g l e lease? 

A. To our knowledge, they're a l l p a r t of a lease 

associated w i t h the Humble State Number 3 w e l l . 

Q. Now, given the f i n d i n g s t h a t you had a t t h a t 

p o i n t from Mr. Anthony's t e s t r e s u l t s and from the OCD t e s t 

r e s u l t s t h a t showed c h l o r i d e s i n the w e l l water, what were 

your suspicions a t t h i s p o i n t i n the i n v e s t i g a t i o n ? 

A. Our f i r s t thought was t h a t the p i t s had been used 

f o r d i s p o s a l of o i l y waste as w e l l as produced water t h a t ' s 

produced i n conjunction w i t h o i l and gas. 

Q. So what d i d you decide t o do next? 

A. At t h a t p o i n t we had sent a l e t t e r t o Maralo 

requ e s t i n g a work plan t o determine the extent of 

contamination a t the s i t e . 

Q. Did they provide one? 

A. No, they d i d not. We d i d receive r e t u r n 

correspondence t h a t they d i d not f e e l t h a t they needed t o 

perform any work a t the s i t e . 

Q. Did you conduct any f u r t h e r i n v e s t i g a t i o n of the 

s i t e ? 

A. Yes we d i d , we had — a t p o i n t had come back, a t 
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a s e r i e s of p o i n t s , t o look a t the p i t s and p o t e n t i a l 

contamination, the magnitude of contamination i n t h e p i t 

s i t e s as w e l l as i n the tank b a t t e r y area. 

Q. I n f a c t , there were three r e p o r t s done on s o i l 

contamination regarding t h i s s i t e ? 

A. There was three t h a t were conducted, yes. 

Q. Two by OCD and the one r e p o r t from Mr. Seay t h a t 

was p r e v i o u s l y mentioned? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I ' d l i k e you t o s t a r t out by j u s t p r o v i d i n g a 

t i m e l i n e f o r us on these on these three i n v e s t i g a t i o n s . 

The f i r s t i n v e s t i g a t i o n was done by OCD; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, was looking a t f o l l o w i n g some correspondence 

on — w i t h Maralo on cleanup of the s i t e . The D i v i s i o n 

came out a t t h a t p o i n t and obtained some s o i l samples from 

a few d i f f e r e n t p o r t i o n s of the s i t e . 

Q. That was i n the summer of 2001? 

A. That i s i n — yes, I bel i e v e i t was i n — 

a c t u a l l y , i t was i n — the samples were taken on May the 

2nd of 2001. 

Q. Okay. I ' d l i k e you t o take a look a t E x h i b i t 

Number 3. I s t h a t the r e p o r t from t h a t f i r s t OCD 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n of s o i l contamination a t the s i t e ? 

A. Yes, t h i s i s a la b o r a t o r y r e p o r t of the s o i l 

samples t h a t the OCD took a t t h a t time. 
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Q. Could you take a look a t E x h i b i t Number 4? I s 

t h a t a copy of the r e p o r t from OCD's i n v e s t i g a t i o n of s o i l 

contamination the next year, i n 2002? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

MR. SANDOVAL: Mr. Examiner, would you mind i f I 

s i t a t counsel table? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: No, no problem a t a l l . 

THE WITNESS: And these samples, according t o 

t h i s r e p o r t , were taken on May the 16th of 2002. 

Q. (By Ms. MacQuesten) And the l a s t r e p o r t — and 

t h i s i s the one t h a t we have a pending o b j e c t i o n on — i s 

t h a t E x h i b i t Number 5, the Seay r e p o r t done i n 2003? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , t h i s i s the r e p o r t t h a t was 

provided t o the OCD by the land owner. 

Q. So ther e were three i n v e s t i g a t i o n s done over the 

course of thre e years? 

A. Three t h a t involved s o i l s . The f i r s t i n s p e c t i o n 

of the s i t e and sampling involved w a t e r - q u a l i t y sampling of 

the water w e l l . 

Q. Let's s t a r t by looking a t E x h i b i t Number 3, and 

t h a t i s the r e s u l t s of the 2001 i n v e s t i g a t i o n done by OCD. 

Now, the f i r s t page from the back i s a summary of the 

f i n d i n g s ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, t h i s i s a summary of the l a b o r a t o r y r e s u l t s 

provided by the l a b o r a t o r y . 
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Q. And behind t h a t i s a summary of the d e t a i l e d data 

from the t e s t i n g ? 

A. Yes, a c t u a l l y t h i s i s the a c t u a l — f o l l o w i n g 

t h a t i s the a c t u a l l a b o r a t o r y data from TraceAnalysis Labs, 

Lubbock, Texas. 

Q. I ' d l i k e you t o take a look a t the very l a s t page 

and t e l l us what t h a t i s . 

A. The l a s t page i s a diagram showing the 

approximate l o c a t i o n s of the samples t h a t were obtained by 

the OCD. 

Q. Those three white rectangles, those are the t h r e e 

p i t areas t h a t you saw? 

A. Yes, there's three p i t areas. They're not 

a c t u a l l y t o scale from — When I was out t h e r e on the f i r s t 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n , the p i t area t h a t you see the r e t o the south 

of the o l d tank b a t t e r y area on the south side i s — t h a t 

p i t i s approximately 75 f e e t square, and so these are not 

q u i t e drawn t o scale. The two p i t s t h a t are l i s t e d t o the 

west of the o l d b a t t e r y area are — were approximately 150 

f o o t square. That was j u s t on a rough pacing when I was 

out a t the s i t e on the i n i t i a l s i t e i n s p e c t i o n . 

Q. So i t ' s not t o scale, but i t shows roughly the 

areas t h a t you described t o us before? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And the dark rectangles, those are lab e l e d " o l d 
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b a t t e r y area". What d i d you see i n t h a t area? 

A. The o l d b a t t e r y area on the south si d e , the one 

t h a t ' s l i s t e d there on the diagram, was i n d i c a t e d t o us as 

the former l o c a t i o n of the tank b a t t e r y . I b e l i e v e t h e r e 

was f o u r tanks t h a t were located a t t h a t p o r t i o n of the 

s i t e , as i n d i c a t e d t o us by Mr. Anthony. 

And then there's the area t h a t ' s t o the n o r t h 

s i d e , which i s j u s t designated as the o l d b a t t e r y area, 

n o r t h side. 

Q. Now, i f you look a t the bottom of t h i s page, 

there's an index showing s i x samples taken from t h i s area? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And the samples were taken a t the l o c a t i o n s t h a t 

are small c i r c l e s marked w i t h X's? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. One was i n the o l d b a t t e r y s i t e , and the r e s t are 

i n the p i t areas? 

A. Yeah, sample number 1 was located i n the o l d 

b a t t e r y area, south side, and then the remainder are 

l o c a t e d i n the p i t l o c a t i o n s . 

Q. And samples 5 and 6, i f I understand t h i s 

c o r r e c t l y , were taken from one s i n g l e l o c a t i o n but a t 

d i f f e r e n t depths? 

A. Well, they're taken from approximately the same 

area but a t d i f f e r e n t depths. 
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Q. What k i n d of depths are we t a l k i n g about i n the 

t e s t s done here? 

A. Most of these were — w e l l , two of the samples, 

sample 1 and number 2, were taken across the i n t e r v a l from 

zero t o 12 f o o t . 

Sample number 3 was a surface sample. 

And sample 4 was c o l l e c t e d from f o u r f e e t deep. 

And then sample 5 and 6 were taken from 

approximately — one's taken — sample 5 i s taken from 

about the t h r e e - t o f o u r - f o o t i n t e r v a l i n the p i t . 

And sample number 6 i s c o l l e c t e d from 

approximately s i x t o e i g h t f o o t depth. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f you'd t u r n back t o the f i r s t page, 

I ' d l i k e t o t a l k about the r e s u l t s from those samples. The 

f i r s t page, i n the center there's a box t h a t ' s t i t l e d 

"BTEX". Does t h a t summarize the r e s u l t of the t e s t f o r 

hydrocarbons? 

A. Yes, i t ' s the summary of the r e s u l t s f o r the 

v o l a t i l e organics, notably the benzene, toluene, 

ethylbenzene and xylene, and as w e l l as on the f a r r i g h t -

hand side i s l i s t e d the t o t a l petroleum hydrocarbon 

a n a l y s i s . 

Q. I s the r e a standard f o r an acceptable or 

unacceptable l e v e l of TPH? 

A. The D i v i s i o n uses a guidance t h a t has been 
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adopted f o r use i n closure of unlined p i t s as w e l l as f o r 

remediation of subsurface s p i l l s and releases. 

Q. And what i s t h a t system? 

A. I t ' s a t i e r e d system, l a r g e l y based upon the 

depth t o groundwater a t the s i t e , and i t ' s also based upon 

distance t o water w e l l s , as w e l l as distance t o surface 

water bodies. 

Q. What are the acceptable l e v e l s under those 

d i f f e r e n t t i e r s ? 

A. Based upon the t i e r e d system, you e s s e n t i a l l y 

rank the s i t e based on the s i t e c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s , and you 

have a c r i t e r i a t h a t e s s e n t i a l l y sets i t out i n t o e i t h e r a 

high — h i g h - r i s k , l o w - r i s k or moderate-risk area, and then 

you have a TPH l e v e l t h a t i s scaled t o the type of r i s k a t 

the s i t e . 

Q. What TPH l e v e l would be acceptable i n a h i g h - r i s k 

area? 

A. I n the h i g h - r i s k area, the TPH l e v e l i s 100 

m i l l i g r a m s per kilogram. 

Q. And a moderate r i s k l e v e l ? 

A. A moderate r i s k l e v e l uses a l e v e l of 1000 

m i l l i g r a m s per kilogram. 

Q. And the lowest r i s k l e v e l ? 

A. I s 5000 m i l l i g r a m s per kilogram. 

Q. Which t i e r would apply i n t h i s case? 
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A. At t h i s s i t e we would most l i k e l y be l o o k i n g a t 

the 5000-milligram-per-kilogram l e v e l , based upon the depth 

t o groundwater a t the s i t e and the — from what we — 

observations of the s i t e , i t would be 5000, a t l e a s t from 

what we've seen. 

Q. I s t h a t t r u e even though there's a water w e l l 

l o c a t e d close by? 

A. I t could be argued t h a t the l e v e l should be 100, 

but based upon some of the contamination t h a t we've seen, 

I ' d say we probably would be lo o k i n g most l i k e l y towards a 

5000-milligram-per-kilogram cleanup l e v e l . 

Q. What are these l e v e l s attempting t o p r o t e c t ? 

A. They are attempting — The 100-milligram-per-

k i l o g r a m l e v e l i s when you're i n a shallow — l a r g e l y i n a 

shallow groundwater area. 

You have a l e v e l of 1000 m i l l i g r a m s per kilogram 

f o r moderate r i s k areas, approximately 50 f e e t t o 100 f e e t 

t o groundwater. 

And then over 100 f e e t t o groundwater there's a 

5000-milligram-per-kilogram l e v e l . The 5000 l e v e l i s 

l a r g e l y based upon detriment t o s u r f i c i a l p l a n t s a t t h a t 

p o i n t , and i t i s — Well, the idea i s t h a t the l e a c h a b i l i t y 

through l a r g e l e v e l s i s not great a t t h a t c o n c e n t r a t i o n , 

and also t h a t concentration i s allowable f o r p l a n t 

v i a b i l i t y a t the surface. 
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Q. You mentioned t h a t these standards come from s o i l 

remediation g u i d e l i n e s f o r surface impoundments? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. When d i d those take e f f e c t ? 

A. They were developed i n — I don't know the exact 

month, but i t was i n 1993. 

Q. What were the standards before t h a t time? 

A. Up t i l l t h a t time we had been using the 100-

mi l l i g r a m - p e r - k i l o g r a m cleanup l e v e l , which i s the l e v e l 

t h a t was used a t t h a t time by the — or developed by the 

New Mexico Environment Department, Underground Storage Tank 

Bureau, f o r petroleum releases. 

Q. So p r i o r t o 1993 there was a s t r a i g h t 100 

g u i d e l i n e f o r a l l circumstances? 

A. That's the l e v e l t h a t we were using f o r cleanups 

a t the Environmental Bureau a t t h a t time. 

Q. So the standards a p p l i c a b l e now f o r e n t i t i e s l i k e 

Maralo, who are being judged by the lowest standard, are 

a c t u a l l y more favorable than they were p r i o r t o 1993? 

A. Yes, there's more d i s c r e t i o n given f o r v a r y i n g 

depths t o groundwater. 

Q. I f we t u r n back t o the r e s u l t s of the Summary 

Report from the 2 001 i n v e s t i g a t i o n , i f 5000 i s the standard 

t h a t we're lo o k i n g f o r , do these samples show acceptable 

l e v e l s of TPH? 
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A. No, they do not, according t o our guidance 

c r i t e r i a . We have — and I ' l l have t o maybe l a y these out 

f o r you. The f i r s t sample, which goes by the f i e l d code 

over on the l e f t , has a m u l t i - d i g i t code which i s the — 

the f i r s t two d i g i t s i s the year, and then the second two 

d i g i t s i s the month, and then the next two d i g i t s i s the 

day, and then there's a f o u r - d i g i t m i l i t a r y time. 

And those sample codes correspond back t o the 

sample l o c a t i o n s on the f i n a l f i g u r e . So — but th e y ' r e 

l a i d out the same way as the samples were taken. So the 

f i r s t r e s u l t t h a t you see on t h a t , which has a TPH l e v e l of 

35,700, would be sample number 1, and then subsequently 

sample 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 — 

Q. Now sample number 1 — 

A. — down below t h a t . 

Q. Excuse me. Sample number 1 was the sample taken 

a t what i s labeled here as the o l d b a t t e r y area, south 

side? 

A. Yes, t h a t was the sample t h a t was taken from 

about the zero-to-12-inch l e v e l i n the t a n k - b a t t e r y — 

former t a n k - b a t t e r y l o c a t i o n . 

Q. And t h a t has the highest l e v e l of TPH? 

A. Yes, i t showed 3 5,700 m i l l i g r a m s per kilo g r a m of 

t o t a l petroleum hydrocarbons. 

Q. The remaining samples were a l l taken from i t 
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areas? 

A. The remaining were taken from the p i t areas, t h a t 

i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And as we discussed before, samples 5 and 6 were 

taken a t roughly the same l o c a t i o n but a t d i f f e r e n t depths? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And even a t the deeper depth we s t i l l have an 

unacceptable l e v e l of TPH? 

A. Yes, a t the 6- t o 8-foot l e v e l we're s t i l l seeing 

16,500 m i l l i g r a m s per kilogram of t o t a l petroleum 

hydrocarbons. 

Q. The r e s t of the summary r e p o r t covers whether 

c h l o r i d e s were found i n these samples; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And were c h l o r i d e s found? 

A. I n t h i s sampling the c h l o r i d e s were a l l nondetect 

i n each sample set. 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o jump ahead t o what has been marked as 

E x h i b i t Number 6 and ask you i f you can t e l l us what t h i s 

e x h i b i t shows. 

A. This E x h i b i t i s showing some photographs of where 

the samples were obtained. 

Q. Were these p i c t u r e s taken d u r i n g t h i s f i r s t s o i l -

contamination i n v e s t i g a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, they were taken d u r i n g t h i s i n v e s t i g a t i o n . 
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Q. And are they p a r t of the i n v e s t i g a t i o n f i l e ? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. What does the top p i c t u r e show? 

A. The top p i c t u r e shows the backhoe sample t h a t was 

being used t o o b t a i n the deeper samples a t p i t l o c a t i o n s , 

and t h a t would be f o r samples number 5 and number 6. 

Q. What i s t h a t darker substance? 

A. That's petroleum-contaminated s o i l s , dark s o i l s . 

Q. And the p i c t u r e on the bottom of t h a t e x h i b i t ? 

A. This, you can see the a c t u a l r i m of the p i t l i n e s 

and how the petroleum hydrocarbons have been resurfaced a t 

the margins of the p i t . 

Q. I s t h a t t h a t white substance i n the center of the 

p i c t u r e ? 

A. Yes, i n t h i s black-and-white photo i t comes out 

as k i n d of a w h i t i s h substance. I t ' s a c t u a l l y black, k i n d 

of black t o gray, g r a y i s h m a t e r i a l . 

Q. I hate t o break i t t o you, but the second-class 

c i t i z e n s here have the black-and-white photos, but the 

Hearing Examiners and the opposing counsel have the c o l o r 

p i c t u r e s . They may be able t o see i t a l i t t l e b e t t e r than 

we can. 

I s t h i s second p i c t u r e c o n s i s t e n t w i t h what you 

saw when you v i s i t e d the s i t e ? 

A. Yes, except f o r the s o i l s t h a t were dug out a t 
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t h a t time. We d i d not d i g out any s o i l samples a t the 

s i t e , but the p i c t u r e below represents how both — or 

a c t u a l l y a l l the p i t s were p i c t u r e d w i t h petroleum 

hydrocarbons t h a t had surfaced around the rims of the p i t . 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o t u r n now t o the second s o i l 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n t h a t was done i n 2002, and t h a t i s E x h i b i t 

Number 4. Why was a d d i t i o n a l t e s t i n g done? 

A. At t h a t p o i n t we were a l i t t l e confused t h a t we 

weren't seeing any c h l o r i d e contamination, because we had 

o r i g i n a l l y b elieved t h a t t h i s produced water had been 

disposed i n these areas, and we were l o o k i n g a t t r y i n g t o 

o b t a i n some deeper samples a t t h a t p o i n t t o see i f maybe 

c h l o r i d e s were found deeper i n the p r o f i l e , i n the s o i l 

p r o f i l e . 

Q. How deep were the samples taken i n t h i s second 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n ? 

A. I n t h i s p o r t i o n of the i n v e s t i g a t i o n , they were 

taken from about the 27- t o 28-foot l e v e l w i t h a small 

t r a i l e r - m o u n t e d d r i l l r i g . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now again, we have — the f i r s t pages 

provide the summary of the r e s u l t s , f o l l o w e d by the data? 

A. Yes, the f i r s t two pages c o n t a i n the summary of 

the r e p o r t . And then the a c t u a l l a b o r a t o r y data t h a t the 

summary i s obtained from i s contained on the subsequent 

pages. 
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Q. Now, i f we look a t the box on the bottom of the 

f i r s t page of E x h i b i t 4, i t ' s set up s i m i l a r t o the box we 

looked a t i n E x h i b i t Number 3; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i n t h i s i n v e s t i g a t i o n t h e r e were two areas 

t h a t were sampled? 

A. Yes, there was one area t h a t was sampled on the 

n o r t h side of the road, about 4 3 yards, roughly, n o r t h of 

the o n - s i t e water w e l l . And then the remainder of the 

samples were taken from a borehole t h a t ' s l i s t e d as the 

southwest area, and i t ' s approximately taken i n one of the 

p i t s over t h e r e i n the southwestern area. 

Q. So t h i s box shows the r e s u l t s we have — a number 

of l i s t i n g s f o r "North Area" and a number of l i s t i n g s f o r 

"Southwest Area" a t d i f f e r e n t depths? 

A. Yes, each one of those are — the n o r t h area i s a 

s i n g l e borehole, and then you have d i f f e r e n t sample 

i n t e r v a l s t h a t were obtained w i t h depth down from two f e e t , 

down t o 27 f e e t . And then i n the southwest area you had, 

again, a s i n g l e borehole w i t h samples taken from 5 f e e t t o 

27 t o 28 f e e t i n depth. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Looking a t the r e s u l t s f o r the n o r t h 

area, were there unacceptable l e v e l s of TPH a l l the way 

down t o 27 feet? 

A. Yes, i t was seen throughout the s o i l p r o f i l e i n 
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t h a t area n o r t h of the b a t t e r y . 

Q. What were the r e s u l t s f o r the southwest area? 

A. The southwest area showed a very high l e v e l — 

h i g h l e v e l s of t o t a l petroleum hydrocarbons down t o a depth 

of about 2 0 f e e t , where the concentrations dropped o f f a t 

t h a t p o i n t t o low l e v e l s , below our guidance c r i t e r i a . 

Q. And i f you could t u r n t o the next page of E x h i b i t 

Number 4, these are the r e s u l t s f o r ch l o r i d e s ? 

A. Yes, on the back of the f i r s t page, and then on 

the second page. 

Q. And what were those r e s u l t s ? 

A. Again, we showed very low c h l o r i d e concentrations 

i n the s o i l p r o f i l e . 

Q. Now, a t h i r d examination was done, but t h i s one 

was not done by OCD; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. This was done by Eddie Seay f o r — on behalf of 

land owner Jay Anthony? 

A. Yes, i t was, and i t was submitted by Mr. Seay f o r 

Mr. Anthony. 

Q. And i s E x h i b i t Number 5 a copy of the r e p o r t t h a t 

was submitted by Mr. Seay? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Did you use t h i s r e p o r t i n your e v a l u a t i o n of the 

s i t e and i n what you would — i n making your d e c i s i o n 
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regarding what you would request from Maralo regarding the 

s i t e ? 

A. Yes, the — t h i s r e p o r t — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, a t t h i s time I'm 

going t o renew my o b j e c t i o n t o Mr. Olson t e s t i f y i n g from or 

u t i l i z i n g t h i s r e p o r t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: What i s the basis f o r t h a t 

o b j e c t i o n , Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: The basis i s hearsay, Mr. 

Examiner. The d i f f i c u l t y i s t h a t Mr. Seay i s not here t o 

describe f o r you the c o l l e c t i o n p r o t o c o l , the methodology, 

the sampling and a l l the r e s t . 

I t ' s very obvious t h a t t h i s i s d i f f i c u l t t o work 

w i t h . I f y o u ' l l look through the r e p o r t very q u i c k l y and 

f i n d the l o c a t o r map — here's the map — u n l i k e Mr. Olson, 

who has provided f o r us a schematic by footages, i t ' s not 

po s s i b l e t o lo c a t e any of these i n f o r m a t i o n by l o o k i n g a t 

t h i s . There's no footages, there's no way t o understand 

t h i s d i s p l a y . 

And w i t h o u t Mr. Seay's presence, we are unable t o 

v e r i f y or e x p l a i n the accuracy of the drawing, and so we 

o b j e c t . 

MR. SANDOVAL: Mr. Examiner, i f I may? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Please. 

MR. SANDOVAL: My c l i e n t h i r e d Mr. Seay t o 
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perform these t e s t s , and we c e r t a i n l y would l i k e t o have 

the o p p o r t u n i t y t o have them admitted here. Mr. Olson has 

been q u a l i f i e d as an expert witness i n t h i s case, he's 

t e s t i f y i n g as an expert. He j u s t t e s t i f i e d i n response t o 

Ms. MacQuesten t h a t he used t h i s p a r t i c u l a r r e p o r t t o help 

him a r r i v e a t h i s conclusions t h a t he i s t e s t i f y i n g about 

today. 

I know t h i s i s an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e hearing and the 

Rules of Evidence don't t y p i c a l l y apply, but here they do 

provide some guidance i n t h a t when an expert witness i s 

t e s t i f y i n g , the m a t e r i a l s t h a t he r e l i e s on t o form h i s 

o p i n i o n need not be s p e c i f i c a l l y admissible i n a c o u r t of 

law. The important t h i n g i s whether or not the m a t e r i a l s 

t h a t he i s r e l y i n g on have been h e l p f u l t o him i n 

f o r m u l a t i n g h i s opinion. 

With regard t o whether or not the methodology or 

the accuracy of the Seay study i s i n question, we've got an 

expert witness here t h a t can be cross-examined i n terms o f , 

Was t h e r e anything i n t h a t r e p o r t , Mr. Olson, t h a t you 

disagreed w i t h or t h a t you f e e l was not p r o p e r l y done. 

So I don 11 t h i n k t h a t there * s any problem i n 

a l l o w i n g , c e r t a i n l y , Mr. Olson t o t e s t i f y about the r e s u l t s 

of the Seay examination, and I don't b e l i e v e t h a t i t i s 

in a d m i s s i b l e , and I would urge t h a t i t be admitted before 

the Examiner a t t h i s hearing. 
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EXAMINER CATANACH: I am going t o all o w t h i s 

e x h i b i t t o be admitted a t t h i s time. 

Q. (By Ms. MacQuesten) Mr. Olson, how d i d t h i s t h i r d 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n d i f f e r from the ones t h a t were already 

conducted by the OCD? 

A. I n t h i s i n v e s t i g a t i o n they have brought out a 

l a r g e r d r i l l r i g so they could go t o a deeper depth. The 

samples t h a t we obtained i n E x h i b i t Number 4 were l i m i t e d 

by the c a p a b i l i t i e s of the d r i l l i n g r i g a t t h a t p o i n t , so 

i t could only be — samples could only be obtained from 

about the 25-, 27-foot i n t e r v a l , based upon the l i m i t a t i o n s 

of t h a t small d r i l l i n g r i g . So i n t h i s one, a l a r g e r r i g 

came i n and d i d s o i l sampling t o a greater depth. 

Q. I f you would please take a look a t the t h i r d page 

of E x h i b i t 5, does t h i s show the depths a t which samples 

were taken i n t h i s i n v e s t i g a t i o n ? 

A. Yeah, I believe i t ' s on pages 3 and 4, the copy I 

have. 

Q. And how f a r down d i d they go i n t h i s one? 

A. They went down t o 80 f e e t i n depth. 

Q. How many areas were sampled? 

A. There was two boreholes l o c a t i o n s t h a t samples 

were obtained from, according t o the r e p o r t , one t o t h e 

n o r t h side of the road, n o r t h of the tank b a t t e r y , and one 

i n the tank b a t t e r y area. 
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Q. I f you could, please t u r n t o the hand-drawn map 

t h a t Mr. K e l l a h i n was r e f e r r i n g t o e a r l i e r . I t ' s i n about 

the middle of the e x h i b i t . How accurate does t h i s map 

appear t o you, based upon what you saw a t the s i t e ? 

A. I t ' s not accurate i n terms of what the distances 

were from the road i n t h i s area, but f o r where the samples 

— OCD samples have been taken before, i t f a i r l y w e l l 

approximated a t l e a s t one of the l o c a t i o n s t h a t we had 

taken one before, where MA 2 was located. 

Q. And which l o c a t i o n was t h a t c l o s e s t to? 

A. That would have been c l o s e s t t o the samples t h a t 

were designated "North Area" on E x h i b i t Number 4. 

Q. Now, were these samples, MA 2, and i f you look 

down below there's MA 1 — those are the two sample 

l o c a t i o n s — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i n t h i s t h i r d i n v e s t i g a t i o n ? 

A. Yeah, the two borehole l o c a t i o n s . 

Q. Can you t e l l , were they taken i n the p i t areas or 

i n the tank b a t t e r y areas? 

A. These were taken more towards the area — l i k e 

the area — a t l e a s t from t h i s map, from the tank b a t t e r y 

area, and then on the no r t h side from the tank b a t t e r y a t 

t h a t p o i n t . So they were not a c t u a l l y obtained from the 

p i t areas. 
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Q. I f you t u r n t o the next page behind the hand-

drawn map, does t h a t give us the a n a l y s i s of the samples? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. And what were the TPH f i n d i n g s ? 

A. The TPH l e v e l s i n MA 1 v a r i e d from 5480 

m i l l i g r a m s per kilogram a t the 10-foot i n t e r v a l , down t o 

2860 m i l l i g r a m s per kilogram a t the 80-foot l e v e l . 

Q. Now, i t looks as though they s t a r t out a t about 

5000, then a c t u a l l y go up f o r a w h i l e , and then go down as 

you reach greater depths; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And there were unacceptable l e v e l s of TPH down t o 

approximately what le v e l ? 

A. That would be down t o approximately 40 f e e t i n 

depth. MA 1 i s taken from approximately a 10-foot 

i n t e r v a l , and then 2 — MA 1-2 i s taken from the 20 f o o t 

i n t e r v a l , and MA 1-3 i s taken from the 40-foot i n t e r v a l . 

And a t t h a t p o i n t they s t i l l had 8250 m i l l i g r a m s per 

ki l o g r a m of t o t a l petroleum hydrocarbons. 

Q. And they're s t i l l f i n d i n g TPH down t o 8 0 f e e t , 

but a t a lower l e v e l ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. How about f o r the MA 2 s i t e ? What were the TPH 

r e s u l t s there? 

A. They were s i g n i f i c a n t l y higher i n the near-
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surface sample. Up a t the 10-foot i n t e r v a l they observed 

concentrations of 16,600 m i l l i g r a m s per k i l o g r a m of TPH, 

and they dropped o f f s i g n i f i c a n t l y a t the next i n t e r v a l and 

then f l u c t u a t e d a l i t t l e down t o a depth of 80 f e e t where 

a t the bottom they were s t i l l seeing 1370 m i l l i g r a m s per 

kilogram of t o t a l petroleum hydrocarbon. 

Q. Are these f l u c t u a t i o n s unusual? Would you expect 

t o see a steady d e c l i n e i n the l e v e l ? 

A. Not r e a l l y . You can t y p i c a l l y see a l o t of 

v a r i a t i o n i n the s o i l p r o f i l e , j u s t based on p r e f e r e n t i a l 

m i g r a t i o n of contamination through the s o i l s . I t doesn't 

n e c e s s a r i l y move i n a nice, s t r a i g h t l i n e as i t ' s moving 

through the subsurface. 

Q. Did t h i s t h i r d i n v e s t i g a t i o n also look a t 

c h l o r i d e s ? 

A. Yes, i t d i d . 

Q. And what d i d i t find? 

A. I t found r e l a t i v e l y low l e v e l s of c h l o r i d e 

contamination a t the s i t e , w e l l below the — even the State 

groundwater standard a t t h a t p o i n t . 

Q. At the back of E x h i b i t Number 5 t h e r e are a 

number of p i c t u r e s . Are they c o n s i s t e n t w i t h what you saw 

a t the s i t e when you d i d your o n s i t e v i s i t ? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. I n p a r t i c u l a r , would you look a t the t h i r d page 
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of p i c t u r e s which has a l a b e l "MA #2" i n the middle of the 

page. I s the top p i c t u r e c o n s i s t e n t w i t h what you saw when 

you saw the p i t s ? 

A. Yes, t h i s i s co n s i s t e n t w i t h the c o n d i t i o n of 

each of the p i t s a t the s i t e . 

Q. And i f you could t u r n t o the next page, can you 

t e l l us what those p i c t u r e s show? 

A. These show j u s t large broken-up a s p h a l t i c 

m a t e r i a l j u s t s c a t t e r e d across the s i t e . 

Q. And i s t h a t c o n s i s t e n t w i t h what you saw when you 

were there? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. So t o summarize your testimony on the 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n s , there were two water i n v e s t i g a t i o n s t h a t 

form c h l o r i d e s i n the water but not s i g n i f i c a n t 

hydrocarbons i n the water; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And then three s o i l i n v e s t i g a t i o n s t h a t found 

hydrocarbons i n the s o i l but not s i g n i f i c a n t c h l o r i d e s ; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. From the r e s u l t s of t h i s i n v e s t i g a t i o n , do you 

have an opinio n on what the p i t s contained? 

A. Well, i t appears t h a t based upon the sample 

analyses from us t h a t they l a r g e l y contained o i l y m a t e r i a l , 
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most l i k e l y waste o i l s and po s s i b l y tank bottoms a t t h a t 

p o i n t , would be the most l i k e l y m a t e r i a l s t h a t are placed 

i n t h e r e a t t h i s p o i n t . 

I had looked a t — i n the — we o r i g i n a l l y had 

thought t h a t there was — again, as I sa i d e a r l i e r about a 

problem w i t h produced water from these and a p o t e n t i a l 

c h l o r i d e problem, but the r e s u l t s of our stud i e s showed we 

d i d not have c h l o r i d e s i n these p i t areas, so they do not 

appear t h a t they have been used f o r produced water 

d i s p o s a l . 

And I b r i n g t h a t up l a r g e l y because i n some 

discussions w i t h our D i s t r i c t O f f i c e , they have some 

i n f o r m a t i o n a v a i l a b l e t o them on the formations f o r t h i s 

area, and a t l e a s t we had a — water-sample r e s u l t s from 

the Jalmat-Yates-Seven Rivers, showing t h a t t h a t water 

conta i n s , a t l e a s t a t another l o c a t i o n i n t h a t area, 

approximately 5000 m i l l i g r a m s per kilogram of c h l o r i d e . 

Q. So i f produced water c o n t a i n i n g t h a t l e v e l of 

c h l o r i d e s had been placed i n those p i t s , would you have 

expected t o f i n d higher l e v e l s of c h l o r i d e s i n the s o i l 

t e s t i n g ? 

A. Yes, you would. 

Q. Do c h l o r i d e s d i s s i p a t e , evaporate, go away? 

A. No, u s u a l l y they would even — t y p i c a l l y would 

concentrate up towards the surface, because they would wick 
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back — a l o t of the c h l o r i d e s w i l l wick back up i n the top 

t h r e e f e e t and form a s a l t y c r u s t a t t h a t p o i n t . But you 

would also see them w i t h i n the s o i l p r o f i l e as w e l l . 

Q. And y e t you found no s i g n i f i c a n t c h l o r i d e s i n any 

of the s o i l t e s t s i n t h i s area? 

A. No, we d i d n ' t . 

Q. What i s your opinion on the source of the 

a s p h a l t i n e m aterial? 

A. I t appears i t ' s j u s t a r e s u l t of e i t h e r tank-

bottom m a t e r i a l t h a t had been p r e v i o u s l y spread on the 

s i t e , or leaks and s p i l l s around the tank b a t t e r i e s . This 

i s p r e t t y t y p i c a l - t y p e m a t e r i a l we've observed a t other 

tank b a t t e r i e s w i t h i n — i n our i n v e s t i g a t i o n s through Lea 

County. 

Q. From the p h y s i c a l evidence i n t h i s case, can you 

t e l l when the p i t s were used? 

A. I t ' s not possible t o t e l l s p e c i f i c a l l y when they 

were used. You can t e l l t h a t they were most l i k e l y used 

f o r some pe r i o d of time, j u s t based upon the — or t h a t 

they have been there f o r some per i o d of time, based upon 

the depth t h a t the contamination has migrated, as shown by 

the sample r e s u l t s . 

Q. Can you t e l l from the p h y s i c a l evidence when the 

tank b a t t e r y was used? 

A. No, you cannot. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

39 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o take the next e x h i b i t out of order 

and have you jump t o what has been marked as E x h i b i t Number 

11. Are these excerpts from the w e l l f i l e f o r the Humble 

Number 3? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Before we get i n t o t h i s w e l l f i l e l e t me ask you, 

does OCD keep f i l e s on t a n k - b a t t e r y s i t e s ? 

A. No, they do not. There's not a requirement f o r 

p e r m i t t i n g tank b a t t e r i e s i n the OCD Rules and Regulations. 

Q. I s there a requirement t o r e g i s t e r p i t s ? 

A. There i s not a requirement f o r r e g i s t r a t i o n of 

p i t s e i t h e r . 

Q. So f o r the OCD t o get i n f o r m a t i o n on a c t i v i t y i n 

the area, we need t o look a t a w e l l f i l e t h a t i s associated 

w i t h the property on which the tank b a t t e r y and p i t s are 

located? 

A. Yes, sometimes there's i n f o r m a t i o n , but t y p i c a l l y 

t h ere's not i n f o r m a t i o n i n the w e l l f i l e s . Usually i t ' s 

j u s t s p e c i f i c i n f o r m a t i o n t o the d r i l l i n g , p r o d u c t i o n and 

abandonment of an o i l and gas w e l l . 

Q. The excerpts i n E x h i b i t Number 3 are from the 

Humble Number 3 — I'm s o r r y , the — The excerpts i n 

E x h i b i t Number 11 are from the w e l l f i l e f o r the Humble 

Number 3 well? 

A. Yes, these are the f i l e s t h a t I have observed 
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from our review of our w e l l f i l e s . 

Q. And i s t h a t w e l l located a t or near the b a t t e r y 

s i t e ? 

A. I t ' s located i n the area of the b a t t e r y s i t e . 

Q. Can you t e l l from t h i s f i l e when t h a t w e l l was 

f i r s t d r i l l e d ? 

A. I t has — the n o t i c e of i n t e n t t o d r i l l l i s t s 

t h a t t he — i t was done i n May 28th of 1945. 

Q. And who was the operator? 

A. I t was submitted by Ralph Lowe as the operator. 

Q. I f you t u r n t o the second page, i s t h i s document 

the f i r s t document i n the w e l l f i l e on which Maralo 

appears? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. And what i s the date of t h i s document? 

A. The date of t h i s document appears t o be A p r i l 19, 

1974 . 

Q. And i f you look under the box t h a t i d e n t i f i e s 

Maralo, i t says t h a t " I f change of ownership g i v e name and 

address of previous owner". And who's l i s t e d as the 

previous owner? 

A. Ralph Lowe, the same person t h a t had been l i s t e d 

on the n o t i c e of i n t e n t t o d r i l l . 

Q. I s the address f o r Maralo the same as the address 

f o r Ralph Lowe? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. I f you look a t the t h i r d page i n t h i s packet, 

what does t h a t show us? 

A. This i s a n o t i c e of i n t e n t t o plug and abandon 

the Humble State Number 3 w e l l . 

Q. And when was t h i s submitted? 

A. I t was submitted on October the 9th , 1986. 

Q. I s the r e any mention of the tank b a t t e r y i n t h i s 

document? 

A. No, there i s not. 

Q. There's a mention of an i n t e n t t o clean up 

l o c a t i o n ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Are there any s p e c i f i c s about what they i n t e n d t o 

do t o clean up the loc a t i o n ? 

A. No, i t j u s t l i s t s "Clean up l o c a t i o n " . 

Q. Would t h a t include a battery? I s t h e r e any way 

of knowing t h a t ? 

A. There's no way of knowing t h a t . T y p i c a l l y , a l o t 

of plug-and-abandonments u s u a l l y j u s t included a l o t of the 

w e l l a c t i v i t i e s themselves and not n e c e s s a r i l y other 

f a c i l i t i e s l ocated w i t h them. 

Q. I f you t u r n t o the l a s t page i n t h i s packet, what 

does t h i s document show us? 

A. This i s the subsequent r e p o r t of plugging and 
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abandonment of the Humble State Number 3. 

Q. And t h i s was signed o f f on by OCD? 

A. And t h i s was signed by an OCD ins p e c t o r . 

Q. When was i t submitted? 

A. I t was submitted on October 28th of 1988. 

Q. Does i t contain any mention of a ba t t e r y ? 

A. I t does not contain any mention of b a t t e r y or of 

cleanup a c t i v i t i e s a t the s i t e . 

Q. I n o t i c e t h a t a l l of the w e l l documents here l i s t 

t he operator as Maralo, Inc. Who i s the operator of record 

on ONGARD f o r t h i s lease? 

A. C u r r e n t l y i n the system i t ' s Maralo, LLC. 

Q. I n a contamination case, who does OCD look t o f o r 

cleanup? 

A. The D i v i s i o n looks t o the c u r r e n t operator or 

most recent operator of the f a c i l i t y . 

Q. And i n t h i s case t h a t would be who? 

A. That would be Maralo, LLC. 

Q. And who has OCD been d e a l i n g w i t h r e g a r d i n g 

cleanup since Ms. Williams' l e t t e r i n 1999? 

A. We have been deal i n g w i t h Maralo, LLC. 

Q. I s OCD req u i r e d by s t a t u t e or r u l e t o look f o r 

the operator who was i n charge a t the time the 

contamination f i r s t occurred? 

A. No, they are not. There i s — That i s not 
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s p e c i f i e d i n the s t a t u t e . 

Q. Would t h a t be p r a c t i c a l ? 

A. No, t y p i c a l l y these — you could have — we 

commonly do have p r i o r operators t h a t are no longer i n 

business, or a c t u a l l y — e s p e c i a l l y c onsidering the 

c o n d i t i o n and age of o i l f i e l d i n Lea County area, may no 

longer be l i v i n g . 

Q. Would i t be p r a c t i c a l i n the sense of whether you 

could even determine when the contamination f i r s t occurred? 

And i n t h i s case, d i d n ' t you j u s t t e s t i f y t h a t you couldn't 

t e l l when the tank b a t t e r i e s had been used or when the 

contamination happened i n the p i t s ? 

A. I'm not sure I — 

Q. Well, i f we were r e q u i r e d t o go t o the operator 

because the contamination — can we always t e l l who caused 

the contamination? 

A. I t ' s not always possible t o determine t h a t . We 

j u s t know, u s u a l l y from i n s p e c t i o n of a s i t e such as t h i s , 

t h a t i t was — appeared t o be the r e s u l t of the d i s p o s a l 

a c t i v i t i e s a t t h a t f a c i l i t y d uring the op e r a t i o n of the 

f a c i l i t y . 

Q. Let's go back t o what has been marked as E x h i b i t 

Number 7, and t h i s i s a l e t t e r you received from Maralo, 

LLC? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t , i t ' s a l e t t e r dated December 
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15th of 2000. 

Q. Now i n i t I ' d l i k e t o draw your a t t e n t i o n t o some 

language here. This i s from Joe Pulido of Maralo, LLC? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i t says t h a t "While Maralo acknowledges t h a t 

i t has operated two w e l l s i n the immediate area, which as 

you may know were plugged...and the b a t t e r y remediated by 

d i s c i n g i n 1993..." Did you see any evidence of d i s k i n g a t 

t h i s s i t e ? 

A. I t appears t h a t the m a t e r i a l was broken up. I 

don't know i f t h a t was a t the d i s k or some other method, 

but obviously m a t e r i a l i n the area of the b a t t e r y i t s e l f 

appears t o have been broken up a t some time i n the past, 

and the r e s u l t i s the large a s p h a l t i c m a t e r i a l t h a t ' s 

placed around the s i t e . I don't know i f t h a t was — 

n e c e s s a r i l y be considered disked m a t e r i a l , since you have 

the very l a r g e chunks of m a t e r i a l t h a t are s t i l l remaining 

a t the s i t e . Usually the purpose of the d i s k i n g i s t o 

i n c o r p o r a t e the m a t e r i a l i n t o the s o i l m a t r i x , which was 

not done i n t h i s case. There's larg e pieces of m a t e r i a l 

s t i l l l e f t a t the surface. 

Q. Now, a l l of the s o i l contamination t e s t i n g t h a t 

was done, was done a f t e r 1993; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. The s o i l t e s t i n g , yes, i t was a l l done by the 

D i v i s i o n from somewhere — i t was around 2 000 t o the 
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present. 

Q. So whatever d i s k i n g was done i n 1993 d i d n ' t solve 

the contamination problem? 

A. I t appears t h a t i t has not. 

Q. I f you could t u r n t o what has been marked as 

E x h i b i t Number 8. And q u i c k l y , t h i s i s j u s t — t h i s i s 

another l e t t e r from, i n t h i s case, Maralo's a t t o r n e y . 

A. Yes, t h i s i s a l e t t e r dated A p r i l 23rd, 2001, 

from Mr. Rick Strange, representing Maralo, LLC. 

Q. And again, i t references remediation done i n 

1993? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Now, both of these l e t t e r s are r e f e r r i n g t o the 

d i s k i n g of the a s p h a l t i c m a t e r i a l . Was the r e any evidence 

t h a t you could see of remediation attempted on the p i t s ? 

A. There appears t o have been no remediation of the 

p i t s . They appear t o be i n t a c t and have had some — j u s t 

f i l l e d i n on top of the p i t s a t t h a t p o i n t , w i t h the o i l 

r e s u r f a c i n g l a t e r on at some p o i n t around the edges, or 

d u r i n g the closure, one or the other. 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o draw your a t t e n t i o n t o what has been 

marked E x h i b i t Number 9. Can you t e l l us what t h i s e x h i b i t 

shows? 

A. This i s a f i n a l l e t t e r , dated A p r i l 22nd, 2003, 

from the D i v i s i o n t o Maralo, LLC. 
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Q. What does the l e t t e r ask f o r ? 

A. The l e t t e r rescinds a p r i o r abatement plan 

requirement. I don't know i f t h a t was mentioned here. At 

one p o i n t i n time the D i v i s i o n had r e q u i r e d an abatement 

plan pursuant t o Rule 19, based upon the c h l o r i d e 

contamination t h a t we observed i n the water w e l l . 

Based upon the subsequent s o i l sampling where we 

d i d not see any s i g n i f i c a n t c h l o r i d e contamination of the 

s o i l s , we then issued t h i s l e t t e r which rescinded the p r i o r 

A p r i l 11th, 2001, abatement plan requirement. And — 

However, i t d i d s t a t e t h a t the s i t e i n s p e c t i o n s show t h a t 

we had several p i t s s t i l l a t the s i t e and t h a t there's — 

t h a t these m a t e r i a l s would need t o be remediated as they 

caused surface damage, and asked f o r a work plan t o address 

t h i s issue. 

Q. Now, the abatement plan — under Rule 19, t h a t 

would have been regarding contaminated groundwater? 

A. I t would include s o i l s , but the Rule i t s e l f — 

the purpose of the Rule i s f o r contaminated groundwater or 

surface water. 

Q. And you chose not t o pursue t h a t a c t i o n because 

you couldn't — because why? 

A. Because we d i d not have a c l e a r l i n k f o r the 

c h l o r i d e contamination i n the p i t areas, and the c h l o r i d e 

contamination t h a t we are seeing i n the — the lac k of 
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contamination i n the p i t areas and the c h l o r i d e 

contamination i n the groundwater. 

Q. What i s the basis f o r requesting a plan t o 

remediate the surface damage? 

A. We requested the c u r r e n t plan under Rule 313, 

because i t appeared t o us t h a t , you know, o i l y m a t e r i a l s 

and tank bottoms were being placed i n these p i t s and t h a t 

they have caused surface damage, which i s a v i o l a t i o n of 

the Rule. 

Q. Does the A p r i l 22nd l e t t e r d i c t a t e a s p e c i f i c 

plan? 

A. No, i t does not, i t a c t u a l l y requests a work plan 

from the company. The D i v i s i o n does not s p e c i f y methods 

f o r how t o e i t h e r i n v e s t i g a t e or remediate a s i t e . We look 

a t the company t o submit a plan, which we would then look 

over and review t o see i f i t i s adequate, and approve or 

modify from t h e r e . 

Q. I ' d l i k e you t o take a look a t what has been 

marked as E x h i b i t Number 10 and t e l l us what t h i s i s . 

A. This i s a May 5th, 2003, l e t t e r from Maralo. 

Q. There's more than t h a t one l e t t e r , i s t h e r e not? 

A. Excuse me, i t ' s a c t u a l l y a s e r i e s of 

correspondences a t t h a t p o i n t . 

Q. I s t h i s a l l the correspondence f o l l o w i n g our 

A p r i l 22nd request f o r a cleanup plan? 
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A. I b e l i e v e t h i s i s a l l the correspondence 

f o l l o w i n g — Yes. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. I want t o make i t c l e a r , t h i s i s n ' t a l l the 

correspondence i n the case, j u s t the correspondence t h a t 

f o l l o w e d a f t e r t h a t A p r i l 22nd l e t t e r . 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. You had been i n contact w i t h Maralo, LLC, 

throughout t h i s process, though; i s t h a t true? 

A. We had been through our correspondence, yes. 

Q. Looking a t the correspondence a f t e r the A p r i l 

22nd l e t t e r , could you summarize what Maralo's response was 

t o our request f o r a cleanup plan? 

A. We were a l i t t l e confused t h a t Maralo was s t i l l 

focused on the implementation of Rule 19, since we had 

rescinded the abatement plan requirement a t t h a t p o i n t , and 

so t h e r e was a l i t t l e p o i n t of confusion from us on t h a t 

p o i n t . But they were s t i l l u n w i l l i n g t o submit a work plan 

t o address the s i t e . 

Q. Did you attempt t o c l a r i f y t h a t we were no longer 

pursuing a c t i o n under Rule 19? 

A. Yes, t h a t was done by our D i v i s i o n counsel on 

J u l y 9 t h of 2003. 

Q. Even w i t h t h a t c l a r i f i c a t i o n , d i d you ever 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

49 

re c e i v e a cleanup plan from Maralo? 

A. No, we d i d not. 

Q. What would you want t o see i n a plan from Maralo 

f o r t h i s s i t e ? 

A. At t h i s p o i n t we would need t o see a plan t o 

d e l i n e a t e — t o complete the d e l i n e a t i o n of the ext e n t of 

contamination. We've done some l i m i t e d i n v e s t i g a t i o n s of 

the depth of contamination, but there s t i l l has not been a 

complete d e f i n i t i o n of the extent of contamination 

l a t e r a l l y as w e l l as completely v e r t i c a l l y across the s i t e . 

And then subsequent t o t h a t , we would need some 

type of a plan t o address — m i t i g a t e surface damages a t 

the s i t e as we have observed as w e l l . 

Q. What would you expect t o remediate the surface 

damage, based on what you have r i g h t now i n f r o n t of you? 

A. For surface damages, t y p i c a l l y we look a t f o l k s 

doing some type of remediation of the upper s o i l p r o f i l e . 

I t might be i n the top, you know, thr e e t o f i v e f e e t 

p o s s i b l y . I f there's h i g h - l e v e l contamination s t i l l under 

t h a t , p o s s i b l y t o i n s t a l l some type of system t o l i m i t 

m i g r a t i o n of remaining contamination so t h a t i t would not 

pose any f u t u r e t h r e a t s a t t h a t p o i n t . 

Q. Would t h i s plan cover what we've been d e s c r i b i n g 

as the p i t areas and the t a n k - b a t t e r y areas? 

A. Yes. 
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MS. MacQUESTEN: At t h i s time I would move f o r 

the i n t r o d u c t i o n of E x h i b i t s 1 through 11. I understand 

Number 5 has already been admitted. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: That's c o r r e c t . Any 

o b j e c t i o n t o the remaining e x h i b i t s , Mr. Kell a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: E x h i b i t s 1 through 11, w i t h 

the exception of 5 which has already been admitted, w i l l be 

admitted a t t h i s time. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: That concludes my d i r e c t 

examination of Mr. Olson. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Strange w i l l do the cross-

examination. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, Mr. Strange? 

MR. STRANGE: Thank you, s i r . 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STRANGE: 

Q. Do you happen t o have Rule 313 handy? I ' d l i k e 

t o do — j u s t focus w i t h you on t h a t Rule, because as I 

understand i t , and please c o r r e c t me i f I'm wrong, the 

focus of t h i s request i s based upon t h a t Rule? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, obviously you've gone over some of the 

discussion. E a r l i e r i n t h i s case there was a l l e g a t i o n s 
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made t h a t Maralo had p o l l u t e d the groundwater, and you 

wanted Maralo t o take actions t o remedy t h a t , but you're 

not pursuing t h a t today; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. You've t a l k e d about some of your i n v e s t i g a t i o n . 

I want t o go over t h a t a l i t t l e b i t w i t h you. What you've 

done i s , you've gone out on two occasions and you've taken 

some s o i l samples, correct? 

A. S o i l samples and a water sample as w e l l from the 

s i t e . 

Q. Okay. The water samples, though, as f a r as what 

you're asking f o r today, do not play a p a r t i n your 

request? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. So — I phrased my question p o o r l y , but r e a l l y 

what you're l o o k i n g a t i s , you've gone out a couple of 

times and you've taken some s o i l samples; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , we've taken s o i l samples. 

Q. Now I'm not an expert on OCD operations, but the 

State r e q u i r e s t h a t c e r t a i n documents be f i l e d , i f I'm 

going t o d r i l l a w e l l , i f I'm going t o take c e r t a i n a c t i o n s 

on a w e l l , c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you've got access t o whatever records are 

f i l e d w i t h the State of New Mexico? 
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A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And I'm assuming you've taken the o p p o r t u n i t y 

before coming here today t o go through the New Mexico 

records, and you've p u l l e d what you f e l t was r e l e v a n t , 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. I p u l l e d from the w e l l f i l e s the — what under 

Maralo was the only s i t e I saw l i s t e d f o r Humble State i n 

our w e l l f i l e records. 

Q. That's not e x a c t l y my question, s i r , w i t h 

respect. 

A. Okay. 

Q. What you're asking today — To get ready f o r 

today, you've had the o p p o r t u n i t y t o go through any records 

t h a t the State of New Mexico has on operations out i n t h i s 

area; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And Maralo hasn't done anything t h a t ' s kept you 

from l o o k i n g through any of the State's records, any w e l l 

f i l e s , any other records t h a t the OCD maintains; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. No. 

Q. And you've brought w i t h you what you b e l i e v e are 

r e l e v a n t t o t h i s p a r t i c u l a r i n q u i r y ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yeah, I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s i n the e x h i b i t s , yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s look a t Rule 313. I'm going t o 
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read out loud here a l i t t l e b i t . 

"Wells producing o i l . . . " and by the way, we're 

t a l k i n g about the c u r r e n t version of Rule 313, aren't we? 

A. Yes, we are, as l i s t e d i n the Rules as of today, 

yes. 

Q. And I t h i n k you and I are probably l o o k i n g a t the 

same document. The versi o n we're l o o k i n g a t i s e f f e c t i v e 

May 15th of 2000; i s t h a t correct? 

A. The f i n a l date was l i s t e d as — I guess we're 

l o o k i n g a t 19.15.5.313; the f i n a l date they l i s t t h e r e i s 

5-15 of 2000. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , so l e t ' s you and I look a t the 2 000 

v e r s i o n of t h i s Rule. "Wells producing o i l s h a l l be 

operated i n such a manner as w i l l reduce as much as 

p r a c t i c a b l e the formation of emulsion and basic sediments." 

Did I read t h a t sentence c o r r e c t l y ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay, and you and I agree t h a t i f I'm out t h e r e 

d r i l l i n g a w e l l and I'm producing o i l , t h e r e i s no way t o 

operate a w e l l i n New Mexico without having some emulsions 

and some basic sediments? 

A. I agree. 

Q. What the Rule says i s t h a t you w i l l reduce as 

much as p r a c t i c a b l e , r i g h t ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 
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Q. So we need t o look a t what i n d u s t r y standards 

are, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And i n d u s t r y standards are going t o vary from 

time t o time? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And I t h i n k we've esta b l i s h e d t h a t t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r w e l l was d r i l l e d i n the F o r t i e s ? 

A. 1945, I t h i n k we t e s t i f i e d t o . 

Q. Okay. Number 3? Yeah. J u l y 23rd, 1945. 

Now, back i n the F o r t i e s i t was allowed i n the 

State of New Mexico t o dispose of water i n p i t s , u n l i n e d 

p i t s ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And t h a t p r a c t i c e continued, depending on what 

area we're a t , f o r many years a f t e r t h a t ? 

A. Approximately — Probably about 20 years a f t e r 

t h a t . 

Q. On i n t o the S i x t i e s . 

A. The m i d - S i x t i e s , c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So from 1945 through the m i d - S i x t i e s , 

i f t he operator had disposed of produced water out i n an 

open, u n l i n e d p i t , t h a t would not be a v i o l a t i o n of any New 

Mexico r u l e ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. And t h a t would be co n s i s t e n t w i t h Rule 313, as we 

look a t i t . There's no way t o produce o i l out here w i t h o u t 

g e t t i n g some water, correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And nothing t h a t you do t o t r y t o reduce the 

form a t i o n of emulsion and basic sediments i s going t o have 

any impact whatsoever on the water t h a t comes out, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Can you say t h a t again? 

Q. A l l r i g h t , a reasonably prudent operator — I 

don't care how you operate a w e l l out i n Lea County, you're 

going t o have some water? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And depending upon where I'm a t , the l e v e l s of 

c h l o r i d e w i l l vary i n t h a t water, corr e c t ? 

A. Usually depending on the formation t h a t ' s 

produced from. 

Q. But even w i t h i n a formation, you've seen 

instances where w e l l s t h a t were separated by some distance 

t h a t were being produced from the same formation had 

d i f f e r e n t l e v e l s of chloride? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You can't simply take a w e l l and, i f i t has 

c h l o r i d e s of X p a r t s per m i l l i o n , assume t h a t every other 

w e l l t h a t ' s producing from t h a t same formation w i l l have 

water of X p a r t s per m i l l i o n chlorides? 
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A. They're u s u a l l y not the same, but they're u s u a l l y 

w i t h i n a — i n a range of — 

Q. Okay. And you use the word " u s u a l l y " . 

A. Yeah. 

Q. You've seen instances where there have been some 

p r e t t y wide variances between w e l l s t h a t were being 

produced i n the same formation? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. There are any number of reasons t o e x p l a i n t h a t , 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. There's a l o t of reasons f o r t h a t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . But as f a r as l o o k i n g a t the f i r s t 

sentence, t h i s i s t e l l i n g us when you're o p e r a t i n g a w e l l 

you've got t o reduce formation of emulsions and basic 

sediments, I t h i n k we've agreed you're going t o f o l l o w 

i n d u s t r y p r a c t i c e s , those p r a c t i c e s are going t o vary from 

time t o time, but regardless of how I do i t I'm s t i l l going 

t o have some s a l t w a t e r , correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look on a t the second sentence. 

"Those substances..." which i s emulsions and basic 

sediments, corre c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. "Those substances and tank bottoms s h a l l not be 

allowed t o p o l l u t e f r e s h waters or cause surface damage." 
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Did I read t h a t sentence c o r r e c t l y ? 

A. Yes, you d i d . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So can we agree t h a t the Rule as 

w r i t t e n , the 2 000 vers i o n of the Rule, t a l k s about 

emulsions, basic sediments and tank bottoms? I s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, there are t h i n g s t h a t come out of a w e l l 

t h a t wouldn't c o n s t i t u t e emulsions, basic sediments and 

tank bottoms, correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. There are substances, there are hydrocarbons t h a t 

come out of t h a t w e l l t h a t don't c o n s t i t u t e emulsions, tank 

bottoms or basic sediments, correct? 

A. Correct, o i l and condensates. 

Q. Okay. Now, the Rule could have been w r i t t e n , I 

suppose, t o not t a l k about those three but t o t a l k about 

o i l or anything e l s e , correct? 

A. Yes, but t h i s r u l e , I b e l i e v e , was s p e c i f i c a l l y 

designed f o r those substances. 

Q. Well, s i r , w i t h respect t o you, l e t ' s look a t the 

language of t h i s , because t h i s i s an important proceeding 

t o us. You understand the p o t e n t i a l consequences of t h i s 

a c t i o n on the company, do you not? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . And t h i s Rule, the Rule t h a t you're 

t r y i n g t o punish us w i t h , t a l k s about t h r e e t h i n g s , 

emulsion, basic sediments and tank bottoms? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I s i t a l l r i g h t w i t h you i f I j u s t say BS? I t ' s 

hard f o r me t o — 

A. BS&W. 

Q. Okay. Can you and I agree BS&W i s the same t h i n g 

as basic sediments? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. This Rule could have been w r i t t e n i n any 

number of fashions, one of which could have been w r i t t e n t o 

t a l k not about those three t h i n g s but j u s t t o t a l k about 

o i l . 

A. Yes, there's a separate r u l e t h a t deals w i t h the 

storage of o i l i n open receptacles. 

Q. And you have ab s o l u t e l y no s p e c i f i c evidence t h a t 

anyone a t any time has ever stored o i l out th e r e i n any 

open rece p t a c l e , can you? 

A. I can only say t h a t o i l has been i n those p i t s , 

j u s t based upon the — 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. — contaminants t h a t we've seen. 

Q. But the Rule says "stored", and there's a 

d i f f e r e n c e between "stored" — 
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MS. MacQUESTEN: Objection. Counsel i s 

mi s c h a r a c t e r i z i n g what the Rule says. I t says "st o r e d or 

r e t a i n e d " . 

Q. (By Mr. Strange) A l l r i g h t , the Rule t h a t you 

base t h i s on — we got o f f t r a c k — was Rule 313, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, but I t h i n k we also had c i t e d Rule 310 i n 

our A p p l i c a t i o n f o r t h i s as w e l l . 

Q. Okay, I don't know how many times I've asked you 

and how many times you've t e s t i f i e d , but I've always heard 

Rule 313, t h a t t h a t was the basis of t h i s a c t i o n . And I 

t h i n k you and I can agree t h a t Rule 313, as d r a f t e d , i s 

l i m i t e d t o those three t h i n g s , BS&W, tank bottoms and 

emulsion? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, can you and I agree t h a t i f I've got o i l i n 

a tank b a t t e r y and t h a t o i l escapes — or l e t ' s say the 

tank b a t t e r y runs over f o r whatever reason, t h a t o i l comes 

out and i t comes i n t o contact w i t h the surface. I f a t some 

p o i n t i n time, i f we were t o take s o i l samples, you would 

f i n d elevated l e v e l s of TPH? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And depending on the time, you'd f i n d elevated 

l e v e l s of BTEX? 

A. Yes. 

Q. But t h a t would not be one of the t h r e e substances 
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as d e f i n e d by the Rule, t h a t would j u s t be o i l coming out 

of t h a t tank b a t t e r y , correct? 

A. That would be as — I t h i n k as you're r e f e r r i n g 

t o here, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Now, when I'm producing o i l and I've got 

water t h a t comes out of i t , i t ' s been t y p i c a l p r a c t i c e i n 

the o i l i n d u s t r y f o r a number of years t o t r y t o separate 

the o i l and the water. Can you and I agree on t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Can we agree t h a t there i s no way, no p r a c t i c a l 

way, when I'm separating the water t o e l i m i n a t e a l l of the 

hydrocarbons? 

A. I ' d agree w i t h you. 

Q. Can you and I agree t h a t i f I had one of those 

surface d i s p o s a l p i t s t h a t was l e g a l i n the F o r t i e s and the 

F i f t i e s and on i n t o the S i x t i e s , t h a t i f I dispose of water 

i n t o t h a t p i t , the water w i l l evaporate over a p e r i o d of 

time, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Based on whether or not there's a f u l l l a y e r of 

o i l across i t , but yes. The o i l w i l l i n h i b i t the 

evaporation. 

Q. And when i t evaporates, t h a t o i l — whatever o i l 

i s l e f t t h a t I couldn't knock out, w i l l remain behind, 

co r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. Now, you can go out there w i t h a vacuum t r u c k and 

you can p i c k up some percentage of t h a t o i l , c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. But you can't get a hundred percent, can you? 

A. You can get most of i t , but you can't get a 

hundred percent of i t . 

Q. Right. So i f you can't get a hundred percent, i f 

you dispose of sal t w a t e r i n t h a t p i t f o r 20 years, you'd 

expect t h e r e t o be some remnants of hydrocarbons? 

A. Well, you would have some remnants of 

hydrocarbons anyways, because you have dissolved-phase 

contamination from the produced water as w e l l . Y o u ' l l have 

BTEX i n a diss o l v e d phase as w e l l , so y o u ' l l see 

hydrocarbons — whether you have o i l — Usually w i t h 

produced water y o u ' l l see hydrocarbons i f you have o i l or 

not. 

Q. Okay. So I'm producing t h a t w e l l , I'm f o l l o w i n g 

i n d u s t r y custom, I'm f o l l o w i n g a l l the r u l e s and 

r e g u l a t i o n s i n the F o r t i e s and the F i f t i e s and the S i x t i e s , 

and p e r i o d i c a l l y I b r i n g a vacuum t r u c k out t h e r e t o t r y t o 

clean t h a t p i t . Even though I've f o l l o w e d a l l the r u l e s 

t h a t were i n place r i g h t then, you would expect a t some 

p o i n t , i f I went back i n time, I ' d f i n d some remnants of 

hydrocarbons? 

A. T y p i c a l l y , yes. 
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Q. Now, BTH i s going t o — I'm so r r y , BTEX i s 

l i g h t e r as compared w i t h other elements w i t h i n the 

hydrocarbons, the o i l s , c orrect? 

A. Yes, i t ' s a v o l a t i l e organic. 

Q. And so i f you go out and do sampling and you 

don't f i n d BTEX but you s t i l l f i n d TPH, t h a t would i n d i c a t e 

t o you t h a t i t had been some per i o d of time since t h a t o i l 

was i n t h a t p i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And loo k i n g a t your t e s t r e s u l t s , i t looks l i k e 

f o r the most p a r t the BTEX was below d e t e c t i b l e l i m i t s , i t 

was nondetect? 

A. Yes, the r e was some l o w - l e v e l BTEX, but i t was — 

i n a couple of the samples, but o v e r a l l i t was r e l a t i v e l y 

low. 

Q. Okay. Why don't — So i t ' l l help us, look a t 

E x h i b i t 3. And t h a t — Do you see the box i n the middle of 

the page? 

A. Yes. 

Q. That summarizes the BTEX analysis? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f you've got t h a t "less than" 

s i g n and a number, does t h a t i n d i c a t e t h a t the t e s t d i d not 

f i n d whatever the element i s , benzene, toluene, i t was 

below d e t e c t i b l e l i m i t s ? 
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A. Yes, I t h i n k y o u ' l l see i t ' s below d e t e c t i b l e 

l e v e l s f o r the BTEX i n , I guess, f o u r of the s i x samples, I 

b e l i e v e . 

Q. Right, and on the other two the r e was none, th e r e 

was no — Well, these are p r e t t y b i g words. There was some 

of the BTEX elements, but not a l l ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Right, i n the f i r s t sample th e r e was a xylene 

contamination, and then the f i n a l sample t h e r e , a t the 

bottom, t h e r e showed benzene and toluene. 

Q. But no xylene on t h a t l a s t sample? 

A. But no xylene. 

Q. Or no ethylbenzene? 

A. Ethylbenzene, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , now those are v o l a t i l e s , so i t would 

suggest t o you t h a t whatever f l u i d t h a t went i n t h e r e t h a t 

l e f t behind the TPH, i t had been i n there long enough f o r 

the v o l a t i l e s t o d i s s i p a t e i n whatever way? 

A. Yes, I ' d agree w i t h you. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You t a l k e d e a r l i e r i n your testimony, 

you s a i d something about tank bottoms. As I understand, 

the only evidence t h a t you have as f a r as tank bottoms i s 

simply the s o i l a n a l y s i s , the TPH levels? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . We d i d not — have never 

witnessed any disposal i n t o those p i t s . 

Q. Okay. But i f — Let's f o r g e t the c h l o r i d e s f o r 
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j u s t a second. Let's t a l k about the other a n a l y s i s you d i d 

w i t h those s o i l samples. I f I'm p u t t i n g produced f l u i d s i n 

those surface disposal p i t s , back i n the F o r t i e s and the 

F i f t i e s and the S i x t i e s , I would f i n d elevated l e v e l s of 

TPH, c o r r e c t ? 

A. You would p o t e n t i a l l y f i n d elevated l e v e l s of 

TPH, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. That would be completely c o n s i s t e n t — I'm 

so r r y — We can t a l k about p o s s i b i l i t i e s and we can t a l k 

about a d e f i n i t i v e a n alysis — 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — your — the d i f f e r e n c e , I'm t a l k i n g about. 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. There i s no d e f i n i t i v e a n a l y s i s t h a t t e l l s you 

tank bottoms were ever placed i n any of those o l d d i s p o s a l 

p i t s ? 

A. No, t h a t ' s based j u s t upon our observations of 

s i m i l a r types of p i t s i n the San Juan Basin — or not i n 

the San Juan Basin, Lea County, excuse me. 

Q. The r e s u l t s t h a t we've seen, these r e s u l t s , t h e r e 

are TPH l e f t , but without BTEX, and you — BTEX f o r the 

most p a r t — t h a t analysis i s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h o i l — not 

the tank bottoms, but o i l going out i n those tanks f o r 

whatever reason? 

A. I t could be. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

65 

Q. And w i t h the t a n k - b a t t e r y s i t e i t s e l f , i t ' s the 

same a n a l y s i s . The mere f a c t t h a t you've got TPH i n the 

s o i l i s as co n s i s t e n t w i t h the tank b a t t e r y o v e r f l o w i n g as 

i t would be any number of other a c t i v i t i e s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. But the Rule t a l k s about di s p o s a l of tank bottoms 

t h e r e , a t l e a s t i n t h a t t h i r d sentence where i t says, I f 

tank bottoms are removed t o service the p i t s ? Do you see 

t h a t sentence? 

A. Just a second. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . But you can't d e f i n i t i v e l y t e l l the 

agency t h a t you know tank bottoms were placed out t h e r e , 

because the lab analysis you've got i s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h any 

number of a c t i v i t i e s ? 

A. That's r i g h t , we base t h a t upon our observations 

of s i m i l a r types of p i t s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, from your records was t h e r e any 

i n d i c a t i o n t h a t any operator was ever c i t e d f o r using a 

surface d i s p o s a l p i t a f t e r the n o - p i t order was issued? 

A. No. 

Q. Now you know from your records t h a t Maralo was 

not the p a r t y t h a t d r i l l e d the w e l l , Maralo was not the 

p a r t y t h a t operated the w e l l i n i t i a l l y , Maralo d i d not 

become operator u n t i l 1974; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yeah, according t o our records t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 
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Q. You have no evidence t h a t Maralo ever used those 

surface d i s p o s a l p i t s , c orrect? 

A. No, we do not. 

Q. Can you p o i n t t o me i n your Rules any r u l e t h a t 

i n black and white says Maralo, as the c u r r e n t operator, i s 

responsible f o r the actions of any other party? 

A. There's not a s p e c i f i c r u l e t o t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Now, you t a l k e d about i n some instances 

i t ' s d i f f i c u l t t o determine who d i d what when the r e are 

m u l t i p l e operators. I s t h a t a f a i r summary? 

A. Yes. 

Q. But t h a t wouldn't apply i f , i n t h i s case, the 

evidence showed t h a t a p r i o r operator used the surface 

d i s p o s a l p i t s but t h a t Maralo never used any of those p i t s 

f o r any reason? I n t h a t instance you would be able t o 

determine who had done what? 

A. That's t r u e , but i t ' s been the p o l i c y of the 

D i v i s i o n t o go a f t e r the c u r r e n t operators f o r 

contamination a t f a c i l i t i e s t h a t they operate. 

Q. And can you p o i n t t o me a r u l e t h a t I can look a t 

where the L e g i s l a t u r e has authorized such a p o l i c y ? 

A. No, I cannot. 

Q. Okay, but we can agree t h a t a t l e a s t i n t h i s 

instance, i f the evidence was t h a t Maralo had never 

operated any of those p i t areas, t h a t you could 
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d e f i n i t i v e l y say a l l r i g h t , I know you d i d n ' t do i t , 

someone else did? 

A. I ' d agree w i t h you, but our D i v i s i o n doesn't have 

any s p e c i f i c evidence t o t h a t , of t h a t p o i n t . But I would 

agree w i t h you, i f there i s evidence t h a t Maralo d i d not do 

t h a t , t h a t ' s — you know. 

Q. Let's j u s t assume t h a t one of the other witnesses 

t h a t t e s t i f i e s i n t h i s proceeding t e s t i f i e s t h a t t he p i t s 

were abandoned when a sa l t w a t e r disposal w e l l came on l i n e 

and was pe r m i t t e d . Would you have any reason t o di s p u t e 

t h a t testimony? 

A. No, I don't have any evidence t o di s p u t e t h a t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So i f t h a t ' s the case, i f a s a l t w a t e r 

d i s p o s a l w e l l came on l i n e i n the S i x t i e s and Maralo became 

the operator i n the Seventi.es, i n t h a t instance you would 

be able t o separate what Maralo had done, as opposed t o 

what other operators have done? 

A. I t ' s possible t o separate them a t t h a t p o i n t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, i n your — the drawing t h a t you 

prepared — and I'm sor r y , I'm not sure which e x h i b i t i t ' s 

i n , but t h i s — the drawing where you've got the d e p i c t i o n 

of the s i t e — 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you measured the boundary of any of these 

s i t e s ? 
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A. I have paced o f f the boundaries of the p i t areas 

themselves. That was the only t h i n g t h a t I had looked a t 

when I was out a t the s i t e . 

Q. And are those measurements i n any of the 

correspondence t h a t you've given Maralo? 

A. No, they're not, they are i n my f i e l d notes. 

Q. Okay. You've got an o l d tank b a t t e r y on the 

south side and an o l d b a t t e r y on the n o r t h side of the 

road. Do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you have any evidence t h a t Maralo, as opposed 

t o someone else, conducted any operations on the south side 

of the road? 

A. No, as I t h i n k I ' d s a i d , i f you go out t h e r e 

today t h e r e i s no r e a l evidence of where the b a t t e r y was. 

I was basing t h i s upon what I was t o l d a t t h a t p o i n t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f the testimony i s t h a t Maralo 

i t s e l f never conducted any operations on the south side of 

the road i n t h a t s i t e , you'd have no way t o d i s p u t e t h a t ? 

A. I ' d have no way t o dispute t h a t . 

Q. And t h a t would be another instance where we could 

separate what Maralo had done, as opposed t o other 

e n t i t i e s , c o r r e c t ? 

A. I would assume so. I mean, I would say t h a t 

something obviously happened on t h a t s i t e , j u s t based upon 
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the sample r e s u l t s . But who a c t u a l l y d i d i t , I don't t h i n k 

we have any evidence i n our f i l e s t h a t would say who 

s p e c i f i c a l l y cause the contamination i n t h a t area. 

Q. Now, i n the map t h a t was i n the m a t e r i a l Mr. Seay 

prepared, he i n d i c a t e d there was a p i p e l i n e out t h e r e . Are 

you aware of tha t ? 

A. Yes. There's a few p i p e l i n e s i n t h a t area. 

Q. Well, he had a p i p e l i n e t h a t went r i g h t through 

t h i s area. Do you r e c a l l that? 

Q. Does he have t h a t p i p e l i n e c o r r e c t l y located? 

A. I don't know, because I d i d not l o c a t e those 

l i n e s myself. 

Q. Do you know what type of products are being 

c a r r i e d i n t h a t p i p e l i n e ? 

A. No, I do not. 

Q. So there's no way t o t e l l whether or not there's 

been any leaks i n t h a t TNMP-Eott p i p e l i n e , whether those 

leaks have c o n t r i b u t e d t o any TPH or other substances t h a t 

you a l l found i n the t e s t i n g ? 

A. We d i d not i n v e s t i g a t e the p i p e l i n e s . 

Q. Okay. But c e r t a i n l y according t o Mr. Seay's map, 

t h a t p i p e l i n e i s closer t o MA Number 2 than any of the 

operations on the south side of the road, c o r r e c t , where he 

put the o l d p i t s ? 

A. Let me j u s t take a look a t t h a t . Yeah, i t ' s i n 
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p r o x i m i t y t o the, you know, MA 2. 

Q. Well, assuming t h a t the tank b a t t e r y was located 

on the south side of the road — 

A. Correct. 

Q. — t h a t p i p e l i n e would be cl o s e r t o MA 2 than the 

tank b a t t e r y , correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Do you know what depth t h a t p i p e l i n e i s ? 

A. I do not. 

Q. I'm assuming you have not looked a t any an a l y s i s 

t h a t ' s ever been done on the water t h a t was a c t u a l l y 

produced by the Number 3 well? 

A. No, we have not. That w e l l i s plugged, so we 

wouldn't be able t o a t t h i s p o i n t . 

Q. Did you ever look back a t any records or anything 

l i k e t h a t ? 

A. We d i d n ' t have any records i n our f i l e s on t h a t 

w e l l . 

Q. Do you have any idea how much water was produced 

by the Number 3 well? 

A. That may be i n our records. I j u s t don't have 

those a v a i l a b l e t o me a t the moment. 

MR. STRANGE: Your Honor, I pass the witness. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Did you have any questions, 

Mr. Sandoval? 
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MR. SANDOVAL: I have j u s t a couple, your Honor 

— or Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. SANDOVAL: 

Q. Mr. Olson, you t e s t i f i e d e a r l i e r t h a t p a r t of 

your n o t i c e t o Maralo w i t h regard t o what was going on on 

t h i s p r o p e r t y also involved a v i o l a t i o n of Rule 310, 

cor r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , t h a t was i n the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a 

hearing a t t h a t p o i n t . 

Q. Okay. And can you b r i e f l y describe the nature 

and the substance of t h a t v i o l a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, the Rule reads t h a t o i l s h a l l not be sto r e d 

or r e t a i n e d i n earthen r e s e r v o i r s or open re c e p t a c l e s , and 

I t h i n k along the l i n e s of what Mr. Strange was g e t t i n g a t , 

i t was — I mean, i t ' s obvious t h a t t h e r e was o i l i n here. 

I t ' s d i f f i c u l t t o t e l l whether t h a t ' s — t r u l y i t was tank 

bottoms or o i l , so we c i t e d both p r o v i s i o n s i n our 

A p p l i c a t i o n f o r the hearing a t t h a t p o i n t . 

Q. And you had — you f e l t you had s u f f i c i e n t 

evidence w i t h which t o make t h a t a l l e g a t i o n of a v i o l a t i o n 

of 310 when you put them on n o t i c e of same? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Mr. Strange asked you whether or not you had 

pr e v i o u s l y provided Maralo the measurements of the areas 
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t h a t are a f f e c t e d here, and I be l i e v e your testimony was 

no; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yeah — I don't t h a t we had — t h a t was a c t u a l l y 

contained w i t h i n my f i e l d notes, which I n o t i c e t h a t page 

of t h e f i e l d notes d i d n ' t make i t i n the f i l e a t t h a t 

p o i n t , so... 

I t was a c t u a l l y the notes from the water sampling 

where we noted some of the co n d i t i o n s of the s i t e , and I 

had a l i t t l e sketch i n there on the approximate sizes of 

the p i t , j u s t a rough pacing of them. 

Q. I n your testimony also e a r l i e r i n response t o Ms. 

MacQuesten's question — "Ms. MacQuesten*s question" — 

about whether or not the s i t e had been completely 

d e l i n e a t e d was t h a t , you know, i t r e a l l y hasn't, you r e a l l y 

don't know yet the f u l l extent of the contamination t h a t ' s 

on s i t e ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I n your review of the records r e l a t e d t o t h i s 

b a t t e r y — tank and b a t t e r y s i t e , d i d you come across any 

evidence whatsoever t h a t there had ever been any d i f f i c u l t y 

w i t h a p i p e l i n e operation out there or a leak i n a p i p e l i n e 

or any such i n c i d e n t i n v o l v i n g a p i p e l i n e t h a t might have 

r e s u l t e d i n the release of hydrocarbons? 

A. No, we d i d n ' t do a d e t a i l e d review of the s p i l l 

records, which i s k i n d of d i f f i c u l t t o do these days w i t h 
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the s t a t e of some of those older records a t t h a t p o i n t . 

But we were c o n f i d e n t t h a t the contamination was from the 

tank b a t t e r y , j u s t due t o where the l o c a t i o n s of the 

samples were and the magnitude of the contamination i n the 

tank b a t t e r y area. 

Q. Okay. And one l a s t question. Do you have any 

knowledge as t o who owned or owns t h i s p i p e l i n e , or who 

operates or operated t h i s p i p e l i n e t h a t Mr. Strange was 

r e f e r r i n g to? 

A. Just from the i n d i c a t i o n of the map, i t ' s 

i n d i c a t e d as a Texas-New Mexico P i p e l i n e - E o t t . Texas-New 

Mexico P i p e l i n e was the previous operator and were 

purchased by E o t t . And t h a t ' s even now, since, changed 

name t o Link Energy, I believe i t i s . So t h a t ' s — I have 

no idea what the age of t h i s p i p e l i n e , though, i s or what 

i t could — I would assume i t ' s a crude o i l l i n e , because 

the Texas-New Mexico p i p e l i n e s were crude o i l l i n e s . 

MR. SANDOVAL: I have nothing f u r t h e r , thank you. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, d i d you have anything? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Just a few. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Go ahead. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: And I apologize. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MacQUESTEN: 

Q. Mr. Strange began h i s cross-examination of you by 
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c h a r a c t e r i z i n g OCD's request f o r a cleanup plan from them, 

f o r the s i t e f o r which they are the operator of record, as 

punishing t h e i r company. 

When OCD requests a cleanup plan from an 

operator, are they doing i t f o r punishment? 

A. No, we're doing i t f o r — t o meet our s t a t u t o r y 

requirements i n the O i l and Gas Act f o r p r o t e c t i o n of f r e s h 

waters, human h e a l t h and the environment. 

Q. And i s i t OCD's p o s i t i o n t h a t the operator of 

record i s responsible f o r t h a t cleanup, whether or not t h a t 

operator caused the contamination? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s our p o s i t i o n . 

Q. And j u s t t o c l a r i f y , the A p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case 

i s based on both Rule 313 and 310.A 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. 313 i s the Rule regarding tank bottoms and basic 

sediments? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , 313 i s the r u l e on emulsion, 

basic sediments and tank bottoms. 

Q. The suggestion was made t h a t the p i t s were used 

f o r produced water and t h a t the hydrocarbons t h a t were 

found i n the p i t s were hydrocarbons i n c i d e n t a l t o t h a t 

produced water. What i s your opinion? 

A. I've cleaned up a l o t of — I've worked on 

cleanups of a l o t of produced-water p i t s , and any p i t t h a t 
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had received s i g n i f i c a n t q u a n t i t i e s of produced water 

t y p i c a l l y has high l e v e l s of c h l o r i d e , e s p e c i a l l y i n the 

Lea County area. I t ' s q u i t e high i n a l o t of the areas. 

Although, as I t h i n k I st a t e d from another w e l l t h a t was 

loc a t e d maybe a mil e and a h a l f or so from t h e r e i n the 

same format i o n , was producing a t about 5000 m i l l i g r a m s per 

l i t e r of c h l o r i d e . So there i s elevated c h l o r i d e i n the 

form a t i o n i n t h a t area. So I wouldn't have expected t h a t 

would have been used s o l e l y f o r produced water a t t h a t 

p o i n t . 

Q. The suggestion has also been made t h a t perhaps 

the contamination t h a t you saw was the r e s u l t of a p i p e l i n e 

leak. Would a p i p e l i n e leak have created the rims of 

hydrocarbons surrounding the p i t s ? 

A. No, and i t t y p i c a l l y does not cause the 

contamination, the high a s p h a l t i c contamination as w e l l 

t h a t ' s spread across the other p o r t i o n of the s i t e where 

the m a t e r i a l had been broken up or disked, I t h i n k , as they 

r e f e r t o i t . 

Q. Rule 310.A i s the r u l e p r o h i b i t i n g the storage or 

r e t e n t i o n of o i l i n an earthen rec e p t a c l e ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. The p i t s t h a t are the r e , are they s t i l l r e t a i n i n g 

o i l ? 

A. They are s t i l l r e t a i n i n g o i l a t t h i s time, w i t h 
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the contamination t h a t ' s t h e r e , a t a lower l e v e l than a 

f r e e product, but i t ' s a t a percentage l e v e l based upon the 

contamination t h a t we saw — I t h i n k we've seen 

contamination from t o t a l petroleum hydrocarbons t h e r e so 

t h a t — i n the percent range i n some of those areas. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: No more questions. 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STRANGE: 

Q. Can you agree t h i s i s the f i r s t case l i k e t h i s 

t h a t ' s ever gone t o hearing? 

A. I guess i t ' s the f i r s t case where we've had a 

disp u t e over which operator caused the contamination, 

t h a t * s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, loo k i n g a t 310.A, i t says o i l s h a l l not be 

stor e d — and I guess we can a l l agree what t h a t means: 

You're not supposed t o take o i l and j u s t put i t out t h e r e 

u n t i l you go back and get i t l a t e r , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. — stored or r e t a i n e d . Okay, i t doesn't say 

placed, i t says or r e t a i n e d . Have I read t h a t c o r r e c t l y ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now obviously, i f I'm going t o use a p i t i n the 

F o r t i e s , F i f t i e s and S i x t i e s , I'm going t o produce f l u i d i n 

th e r e , under a l l p r a c t i c a l standards and the equipment and 

the technology t h a t ' s a v a i l a b l e , there's s t i l l going t o be 
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some o i l products and hydrocarbons i n t h a t water? 

A. That does occur, yes. 

Q. There i s no way humanly pos s i b l e i n the r e a l 

w o r l d t o e l i m i n a t e a l l the hydrocarbons t h a t go i n t o t h a t 

p i t ? 

A. I wouldn't say t h a t . I mean, I've seen a l o t of 

p i t s t h a t have no hydrocarbons i n them, so — 

Q. I'm t a l k i n g about r e a l l i f e . I f I'm producing 

o i l out t h e r e i n Lea County I'm going t o have produced 

f l u i d s , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Uh-huh, c o r r e c t . 

Q. Those produced f l u i d s , when I knock them out, I'm 

s t i l l going t o have some hydrocarbons l e f t ? 

A. Yeah, p o s s i b l y y o u ' l l have some emulsion and 

s t u f f t h a t c a r r i e s over, uh-huh. 

Q. And i t was l e g a l i n the F o r t i e s and F i f t i e s and 

S i x t i e s t o put t h a t water out there i n t h a t surface 

d i s p o s a l p i t ? 

A. Yeah, up u n t i l about roughly the m i d - S i x t i e s . 

Q. Okay. So f o r twenty-some-odd years w h i l e t h i s 

w e l l was i n operation, i t was l e g a l t o put produced water 

out there? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. You l e t i t evaporate, and then the remnants are 

going t o c o n t a i n , a f t e r i t ' s a l l evaporated, i t ' s going t o 
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be — Let me j u s t back up. The reason f o r the p i t , t h a t 

was what t h a t p i t was allowed f o r , was t o get r i d of the 

water? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And everybody knew, put t h a t water out t h e r e , the 

water i s going t o evaporate and i t w i l l leave behind some 

hydrocarbons? 

A. I would dispute the word "evaporate" more than 

"seep i n t o the ground", but t h a t ' s — i t was f o r d i s p o s a l 

of produced water. 

Q. Okay. But t h a t was — the Rule allowed you t o 

use t h a t p i t t o dispose of water, some evaporated, some 

went i n t o the ground — 

A. Right. 

Q. And i t ' s going t o leave behind some hydrocarbons? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And t h a t was p e r f e c t l y l e g a l i n the F o r t i e s and 

the F i f t i e s and the S i x t i e s ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now — 

A. Up t o the mi d - S i x t i e s . 

Q. And good p r a c t i c e — p e r i o d i c a l l y t h a t o i l i s 

going t o accumulate a t some l e v e l and you need t o go out 

th e r e and t r y t o clean i t up? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. There's — With a vacuum t r u c k you cannot get, I 

t h i n k we agreed, 100 percent of the o i l t h a t might be out 

th e r e i n t h a t p i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i f we look a t the language of the Rule, 310, 

the May 15th, vers i o n — and t h a t ' s what i t ' s t a l k i n g about 

— o i l s h a l l not be stored or r e t a i n e d i n earthen 

r e s e r v o i r s or i n open receptacles, co r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And as we s i t here today, you have no evidence 

t h a t Maralo, as opposed t o anybody else — t h a t Maralo ever 

placed any o i l i n any of those o l d p i t s f o r any reason? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. You have no evidence t h a t Maralo a f f i r m a t i v e l y 

took any a c t i o n whatsoever w i t h any of those p i t s ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. So you have no evidence t h a t Maralo, as opposed 

t o any other operator, took any a c t i o n i n v i o l a t i o n of Rule 

310, the May 15th, 2000, version? 

A. I n the ac t u a l operation of those p i t s , t h a t ' s 

c o r r e c t . 

MR. STRANGE: Thank you, pass the witness. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Okay. Mr. Olson, i f you d i d put produced water 
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i n t o those p i t s over the years, t h a t had any k i n d of 

c h l o r i d e content i n i t , would you expect elevated c h l o r i d e 

l e v e l s i n the s o i l beneath the p i t ? 

A. Yes, you would. 

Q. And you d i d not f i n d any elevated c h l o r i d e 

l e v e l s ? 

A. No, we d i d not. 

Q. And those were t e s t e d down t o — Do you r e c a l l 

the depth? 

A. I b e l i e v e the deepest t h a t we had i n the p i t area 

was around — I t h i n k t h a t was i n — probably i n E x h i b i t 4, 

and t h a t would be i n the — you know, approximately 27, 28 

f e e t . 

I t h i n k the s i g n i f i c a n t t h i n g t h a t we looked a t , 

f o r when we were looking a t o i l i n the p i t , was the 

thickness o f , you know, the r i m of the contamination t h a t 

was i n and around t h a t area. I t seemed l i k e t h e r e was a 

s i g n i f i c a n t amount of o i l a t t h a t p o i n t . 

But we d i d — I ' l l admit, i n i t i a l l y we d i d t h i n k 

t h a t produced water had been i n the r e . That was because of 

the c h l o r i d e contamination of the adjacent water w e l l . 

Q. T y p i c a l l y i n a produced-water p i t , you would see 

elevated c h l o r i d e l e v e l s i n the s o i l ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. So l e t me ask you t h i s : I f you were t o put tank 
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bottoms i n the p i t , would you also get some BTEX and some 

TPH i n the s o i l as a r e s u l t of that ? 

A. Yes, you would. 

Q. The amount of asphaltines around the p i t area, t o 

you does t h a t i n d i c a t e a large volume of hydrocarbons t h a t 

were put i n t h e r e over the years? 

A. I t j u s t appeared, based upon the thickness of the 

— you know, the edges of t h a t , you can sure see now t h a t 

t h e r e was a s i g n i f i c a n t amount of o i l i n t h e r e a t t h a t 

p o i n t since i t was covered a t t h a t p o i n t and the s t u f f had 

apparently been oozing back out from the p i t area. 

Q. I f produced water were placed i n the p i t and 

the r e was o i l i n the water or mixed w i t h the water, when 

the water evaporated, would the o i l — could the o i l 

n e c e s s a r i l y form a b a r r i e r on the bottom of t h a t p i t t o 

prevent f l u i d from f l o w i n g downward, produced water from 

f l o w i n g downward? 

A. I f i t was produced, u s u a l l y i f i t e s s e n t i a l l y 

d r i e d out and then more produced water came i n t o , a l o t of 

times t h a t o i l would f l o a t back up out of the s o i l s a t t h a t 

p o i n t , based upon the den s i t y of the f l u i d . 

Q. So t h a t wouldn't nece s s a r i l y preclude f l u i d from 

f l o w i n g down? 

A. No, we've never seen a case where o i l has 

a c t u a l l y performed more of a s e a l i n g mechanism l i k e t h a t . 
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Q. Okay. I noticed on the w e l l f i l e t h a t you have, 

and something curious s t r u c k me, i s t h a t when t h i s — the 

o r i g i n a l operator was Ralph Lowe and the subsequent 

operator was Maralo. Do you know i f there's any 

a s s o c i a t i o n between those two p a r t i e s ? 

A. Only j u s t from what I've heard t h a t they were 

e s s e n t i a l l y — i t was a successor t o — or a successor 

e n t i t y t o Ralph Lowe a t t h a t p o i n t and i t had formed — 

p o s s i b l y formed Maralo, but I don't have any s p e c i f i c 

i n f o r m a t i o n about t h a t . 

Q. Well, I'm looking on the C-104. I t l i s t s Maralo 

and Ralph Lowe w i t h the same P.O. Box i n Midland, Texas. I 

j u s t found t h a t t o be i n t e r e s t i n g . I don't know what the 

r e l a t i o n s h i p i s between those two companies, and you don't 

e i t h e r a t t h i s point? 

A. No, I was t o l d there was another f a m i l y member 

named Mary, and t h a t ' s where they j o i n e d the names t h a t 

became Maralo. I don't know i f t h a t ' s t r u e or not, though. 

That's something t h a t somebody else t o l d me. 

Q. So i n a l l the data t h a t you've looked a t , you 

don't know of any other operator beside Ralph Lowe and 

Maralo t h a t have operated a t t h i s s i t e ? 

A. That's the only two operators we have on record. 

Q. And the c u r r e n t p o l i c y of going a f t e r the 

operator, the c u r r e n t operator, i s t h a t r o u t i n e l y done by 
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t h i s Bureau? 

A. We've been doing t h a t since I was f i r s t employed 

i n 1986 w i t h the Bureau, looking a t the c u r r e n t operator of 

any f a c i l i t y , and then t h a t becomes — our p o s i t i o n was, 

t h a t ' s a c i v i l matter between them and past operators as t o 

whatever environmental l i a b i l i t y they may have from a past 

operator. 

Q. I n your experience, has any operator ever 

challenged t h a t p o l i c y of going a f t e r them, the c u r r e n t 

operator? 

A. Yes, there was once — I don't know i f t h a t was 

about a year ago, roughly, i n a case w i t h surface 

contamination t h a t r e s i d e n t s i n Hobbs — pr o p e r t y owned i n 

Hobbs, New Mexico, and there was a c t u a l l y t h r e e operators 

t h e r e , and i t was d i f f i c u l t t o deal w i t h t h a t s i t e . 

And a t t h a t p o i n t the D i v i s i o n had set t h a t f o r 

hearing t o have t h a t determined, and the operators a t t h a t 

p o i n t s e t t l e d t h a t p r i o r t o going t o hearing, and one of 

the operators t a k i n g r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , a t l e a s t a t t h i s p o i n t 

i n time. 

Q. Okay. With regards t o the plan t h a t you would 

l i k e Maralo t o submit, I believe you t e s t i f i e d t h a t you 

wanted t o d e l i n e a t e the s i t e — the contamination of the 

s i t e ? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s what we were e n v i s i o n i n g , was 
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d e l i n e a t i n g the — f o r a s t a r t , j u s t t o d e l i n e a t e the 

e x t e n t of the contamination so t h a t you could use t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n t o develop a remediation plan. 

Q. Okay, and as I heard you t e s t i f y — now, c o r r e c t 

me i f I'm wrong. Did you say t h a t they would be r e q u i r e d 

t o remediate the top three t o f i v e f e e t of s o i l ? 

A. Yeah, i f the i n v e s t i g a t i o n s confirmed how — our 

p r e l i m i n a r y i n v e s t i g a t i o n s , t h a t t h i s i s l a r g e l y a surface 

issue a t t h a t p o i n t , we'd j u s t be l o o k i n g a t a surface 

remediation issue, which u s u a l l y t r i e s t o take care of the 

p l a n t r o o t zone up i n the near surface and making the 

surface usable a t t h a t p o i n t . But not s p e c i f i c a l l y t o , you 

know, a crop or something l i k e t h a t , but t o make the 

surface a v a i l a b l e t o , you know, propagate p l a n t s . 

Q. Based upon your s t u d i e s , you wouldn't want t o go 

any deeper than t h a t , t o prevent any groundwater 

contamination? 

A. We've been working a l o t of s i t e s a t the moment 

where i f the contamination i s r e l a t i v e l y l i m i t e d i n t h i s 

s i t e , the — there i s some extensive contamination, but the 

depth t o groundwater a t t h i s s i t e i s — I'm t r y i n g t o 

remember. I t h i n k i t ' s approximately 190 f e e t . So i f the 

contamination i s r e l a t i v e l y c o n s i s t e n t i n the remaining 

d e l i n e a t i o n w i t h what we've seen already, I t h i n k as I 

s t a t e d i n reviewing some of the summaries of these r e p o r t s , 
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the contamination got below our guidance c r i t e r i a down a t 

some depth a t t h a t p o i n t , so we're showing t h a t t he 

contamination d i d migrate s u b s t a n t i a l l y , a t l e a s t i n the 

areas t h a t we looked a t , but d i d cease a t some p o i n t . 

So i f you could remove the bulk of the source 

area which t h a t goes towards when you're d e a l i n g w i t h the 

surface, then you have less m a t e r i a l l e f t t o migrate. And 

t y p i c a l l y you can put some type of a — even a b a r r i e r 

below t h a t , and then clean s o i l coming back up, and you've 

reduced the area f o r water i n the f u t u r e t o migrate down 

through t h a t contamination and cause i t t o go any f u r t h e r 

than i t already has. 

Q. I f t h a t was what you req u i r e d t o remove the top 

th r e e t o f i v e f e e t of s o i l i n t h a t l o c a t i o n , i s t h a t a very 

expensive proposition? 

A. I t can be, depending on how you deal w i t h the — 

e s p e c i a l l y deal w i t h the m a t e r i a l t h a t you're generating. 

I f you're having t o haul t h a t f o r disposal and you have a 

s i g n i f i c a n t distance t o haul i t t o , t h a t ' s one of the major 

f a c t o r s i n a l o t of the remediation s i t e s , i s the distance 

t h a t you may have t o haul t h a t f o r d i s p o s a l . That can be a 

s i g n i f i c a n t cost a t t h a t p o i n t . Usually the d r i v i n g cost 

i n a l o t of s i t e s i s a c t u a l l y the disposal cost versus the 

a c t u a l excavations. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. I t h i n k I ' d b e t t e r 
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stop t h e r e . That's a l l I have. 

Anything f u r t h e r of t h i s witness? 

MR. KELLAHIN: (Shakes head) 

MR. SANDOVAL: I have one, maybe two, t o c l a r i f y 

one of the Hearing Examiner's l a s t p o i n t s . 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. SANDOVAL: 

Q. Mr. Olson, I beli e v e your testimony was t h a t i n 

one of the studies t h a t was done, e i t h e r by the OCD or by 

Mr. Seay, t h a t eve when you went down t o 80 f e e t t h e r e was 

contamination present. Did I misunderstand t h a t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , i t was — I t h i n k i t was s t i l l 

around 2 000 or so i n Mr. Seay's r e p o r t . 

Q. And was t h a t i n the tank area, or was t h a t i n the 

p i t area? 

A. That was a c t u a l l y i n the tank area, so there's a 

p o t e n t i a l t h a t there could be a f u r t h e r or a deeper 

m i g r a t i o n i n the p i t area. 

Q. And as p a r t of the requested d e l i n e a t i o n , you're 

going t o be requesting Maralo d i g deeper t o see, you know, 

whether or not i t ' s even a t a greater depth than 80 feet? 

A. That's p a r t of what we would e n v i s i o n , yes. 

Q. So my question, then, l e t ' s — I have two more 

questions. 

Let's assume i t j u s t stops a t 80. I s your 
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testimony t h a t r e p l a c i n g the upper t h r e e t o f i v e f e e t of 

t o p s o i l w i l l take care and w i l l f u l l y address t h a t 

contamination a t 80 feet? 

A. Yeah, as long as there i s some mechanism as w e l l 

t o address, you know, leachate coming through t h a t area. 

Usually you crown those areas as w e l l . 

And we've had a l o t of s i t e s t h a t are going now 

w i t h unremediation where some type of a one-foot — or one-

or two-foot c l a y b a r r i e r t h a t ' s placed a t the bottom of 

t h a t w i t h , then, approximately three f e e t of s o i l placed up 

above, so the l i n e r or — clay l i n e r , i f you want t o t h i n k 

of i t t h a t way, p r o h i b i t s water from moving down through 

t h a t area and causing leachate, which w i l l cause m a t e r i a l 

t o move f a r t h e r a t t h a t p o i n t . 

Q. And l e t ' s assume, then, t h a t as the r e s u l t of 

d e l i n e a t i o n i t i s determined t h a t the contamination goes 

deeper than the 8 0 f e e t . I s there some p o i n t or some depth 

of p o i n t where i t would i m p l i c a t e a need t o address a 

g r e a t e r footage of t o p s o i l t o c o r r e c t the problem, or i s 

t h e r e a p o i n t i n which the depth i s s u f f i c i e n t l y deep t h a t 

i t might i m p l i c a t e the need t o address the groundwater 

concerns t h a t the Hearing Examiner was r a i s i n g ? 

A. Well, t y p i c a l l y the burden i s a t t h a t p o i n t on 

the operator t o determine the extent of contamination. 

There's not a s p e c i f i c c u t o f f l e v e l when we say we stop. I 
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mean, we look a t the — our g u i d e l i n e s f o r guidance i n 

t h a t , and i f we get down t o below the guidance c r i t e r i a , 

based upon t h a t and the depth t o groundwater, we would cut 

i t o f f , say, a t 5000 or 1000 or 100, depending on what the 

depth t o groundwater i s . 

MR. SANDOVAL: Okay, I have nothing f u r t h e r . 

Thanks. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, t h i s witness may be 

excused. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: OCD has no other witnesses. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: That concludes your 

presentation? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Yes. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. What i s the pl a n , Mr. 

Kel l a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: What i s your pl a n , Mr. Examiner? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I'm a t your d i s p o s a l , Mr. 

K e l l a h i n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: You need t o t e l l us i f you want t o 

continue t o do t h i s t o n i g h t , or do you want us t o come back 

i n the morning? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I've been advised Ms. 

MacQuesten i s not a v a i l a b l e tomorrow. 

MR. KELLAHIN: May we have a sh o r t recess and — 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Yes. 
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MR. KELLAHIN: — t a l k about t h i s ? 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 5:46 p.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 5:55 p.m.) 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Everybody here, I t h i n k ? Are 

we ready t o begin? 

MR. STRANGE: Yes, s i r , c a l l Mr. Hunt. 

WILLIAM B. HUNT, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STRANGE: 

Q. Could you s t a t e your f u l l name f o r us, please, 

s i r ? 

A. W i l l i a m B. Hunt. 

Q. Mr. Hunt, where do you l i v e ? 

A. I l i v e i n Midland, Texas. 

Q. For whom do you work? 

A. I'm r e t i r e d . 

Q. What d i d you do before you r e t i r e d ? 

A. I worked f o r — When I r e t i r e d I was working f o r 

Maralo O i l , Incorporated, when I r e t i r e d . 

Q. What were you doing f o r Maralo? 

A. I was operations manager. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , j u s t b a s i c a l l y t e l l me what an 

operations manager does. 
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A. Well, I looked a f t e r a l l the d r i l l i n g and 

prod u c t i o n . 

Q. How long were you employed i n the o i l and gas 

business? 

A. Well, I've been employed i n the o i l and gas 

business since 1950. 

Q. From 1950 t i l l your r e t i r e m e n t , were you 

p r i m a r i l y involved i n operations? 

A. Not a l t o g e t h e r . I went t o work f o r Ralph Lowe. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , you went t o work f o r the o r i g i n a l — 

A. Ralph Lowe. 

Q. — Mr. Lowe t h a t d r i l l e d t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. What d i d you do f o r Mr. Lowe? 

A. I was working on a d r i l l i n g r i g . 

Q. What k i n d of jobs d i d you hold on a d r i l l i n g r i g ? 

A. Well, I was j u s t a roughneck. 

Q. Did you work your way up through the company? 

A. Worked my way up through the company. 

Q. What was your u l t i m a t e p o s i t i o n w i t h Ralph Lowe? 

A. A s s i s t a n t production foreman. 

Q. As a s s i s t a n t production foreman, d i d you have 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r the w e l l t h a t we've been t a l k i n g about? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 
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Q. Have you been out there? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. I s t h a t — I'm sor r y , you need t o say yes or 

no — 

A. Yes, yes. 

Q. — because t h i s i s being taken down. 

Any idea how many times you've been out there? 

A. Well, u n t i l 1981 I was out t h e r e on a r e g u l a r 

basis. I n 1981 I had ceased t o be the operations — I mean 

i n the production end of i t . 

Q. And you went i n t o d r i l l i n g ? 

A. I went i n t o d r i l l i n g . I d r i l l e d w e l l s from there 

on. I d i d n ' t — I wasn't i n t h a t . 

Q. Now, you went t o work f o r Mr. Lowe i n 1950? 

A. Yeah. Well, I went t o work — I've been i n the 

o i l f i e l d since 1950. I went t o work f o r Mr. Lowe i n 1955. 

Q. I'm s o r r y , my f a u l t . A l l r i g h t , from 1955 up 

u n t i l 1982, from time t o time you were out on t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. You're f a m i l i a r w i t h how t h i s w e l l was operated? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Now, i n 1974 when Maralo was formed, d i d you go 

t o work f o r Maralo? 

A. I went t o work f o r Maralo. 
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Q. Just t o k i n d of maybe put t o r e s t a question 

t h a t ' s come up, i s there a d i f f e r e n c e between Ralph Lowe 

and Maralo. 

A. I t ' s two d i f f e r e n t companies. 

Q. And was there q u i t e a l o t of a c t i v i t y t h a t went 

on r i g h t before 1974 t o form Maralo? 

A. There was, c e r t a i n l y was. 

Q. So i t ' s not j u s t a name change, i t was a 

d i f f e r e n t company? 

A. D i f f e r e n t company. 

Q. Now t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , were th e r e surface 

d i s p o s a l p i t s out there? 

A. When i t was Ralph Lowe i t was d i s p o s a l p i t s out 

t h e r e . 

Q. What were those disposal p i t s used f o r ? 

A. Well, they was used t o put water i n , s a l t - — 

b r i n e — water from w e l l s , w e l l water. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Well, you've heard testimony t h a t 

couldn't p o s s i b l y be t r u e because th e r e aren't any 

c h l o r i d e s out on the s o i l . What — 

A. Well, the c h l o r i d e s i n t h a t water out t h e r e was 

very low. 

Q. How do you know that? 

A. Because i t would freeze. You used t o get a 

l i t t l e water, and i t would freeze on the ground. I can't 
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swear as t o what the c h l o r i d e s were, but I do know i t was 

awful low. And they had t r o u b l e separating t h e o i l and 

water because of the c h l o r i d e s being so low. We had t o use 

emulsion breakers t o t r y t o separate the o i l and the water. 

Sometimes you s t i l l couldn't get i t separated. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, those surface d i s p o s a l p i t s , how 

long were they used out there? 

A. They were used u n t i l 1968, when we made a 

di s p o s a l w e l l . 

Q. And then from 1968 on, what d i d you do w i t h the 

water? 

A. I t went i n t o Disposal Well Number 1. 

Q. Now, when you're producing water out t h e r e , i s 

th e r e any way t h a t you know o f , using a r e a l - w o r l d 

technology and r e a l - l i f e c o n d i t i o n s , t o get a l l of the o i l 

out of t h a t water? 

A. No, there was not. 

Q. Would you have o i l buildup from time t o time i n 

those surface disposal p i t s ? 

A. We sure d i d . 

Q. What d i d Ralph Lowe do? 

A. We picked i t up w i t h a vacuum t r u c k and t r i e d t o 

t r e a t out the best of i t we could, put i t bank i n the tank 

b a t t e r i e s and back through the system. And the r e s t of i t , 

the vacuum t r u c k hauled some di s p o s a l . 
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Q. Now, you're f a m i l i a r w i t h tank bottoms? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Did you ever, ever, put any tank bottoms out 

t h e r e i n any of those o l d p i t s ? 

A. No, we d i d not. 

Q. Did you ever dispose of any tank bottoms out i n 

the area t h a t we've t a l k e d about as f a r as the tank b a t t e r y 

area? 

A. No, as f a r as I know, we d i d not. 

Q. Now, from time t o time would you have a leak a t a 

tank b a t t e r y s i t e ? 

A. Sometimes the tanks ran over. 

Q. What would you do then? 

A. We'd have t o p i c k t h a t o i l up out of the 

f i r e w a l l s , put i t back i n the tank. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, from 1974 on, when Maralo was i n 

existence, d i d Maralo ever use any of those surface 

d i s p o s a l p i t s i t e s f o r any reason whatsoever? 

A. Surface disposal s i t e ? 

Q. I'm so r r y , you know the l i t t l e surface p i t s ? 

A. Yes, uh-huh. 

Q. The land where those p i t s were located — 

A. Yeah. 

Q. — a f t e r you put i n the SWD w e l l , what d i d you 

a l l do w i t h those o l d locations? 
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A. They were j u s t l e f t t h e r e , you know, and f i l l e d 

up and — When I l e f t them there they was j u s t — they 

f i l l e d up. 

Q. Okay. Did Maralo ever use those p i t s or those 

l o c a t i o n s , where the surface disposal p i t s are l o c a t e d , f o r 

any reason whatsoever? 

A. Maralo never d i d , no. 

MR. STRANGE: A l l r i g h t , thank you. No f u r t h e r 

questions. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Cross-examination, Ms. 

MacQuesten? 

MS. MacQUESTEN: No questions. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Sandoval? 

MR. SANDOVAL: I have a couple. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. SANDOVAL: 

Q. Mr. Hunt, I'm David Sandoval. I'm an a t t o r n e y 

f o r Jay Anthony on whose property the w e l l a t issue i s 

loca t e d . I have a few questions f o r you. 

At the time t h a t you were i n — you were the 

a s s i s t a n t production foreman f o r Mr. Lowe, and were — and 

had r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r t h i s w e l l , how many other w e l l s were 

you responsible f o r ? 

A. Oh, i n t h a t area r i g h t t h e r e , probably 50, 60 

w e l l s . 
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Q. Okay. And were you r e g u l a r l y v i s i t i n g those 

w e l l s as well? 

A. D a i l y . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I d i d n ' t v i s i t a l l of them every day, you can't 

get around t h a t many. 

Q. So when you t e s t i f i e d t h a t you were t h e r e on t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s i t e on a regul a r basis, can you be a b i t 

more s p e c i f i c about that? 

A. Well, I l i v e d i n J a l , and i t was r i g h t t h e r e next 

t o me, you know, and I had occasion t o d r i v e through t he 

lease and check i t out, you know, t o v i s u a l l y see what's 

happening out t h e r e . 

Q. When you mean " v i s u a l l y " , l i k e as you're d r i v i n g 

past the w e l l s i t e , or d i d you a c t u a l l y disembark your 

v e h i c l e and then walk the premises? 

A. Well, i f I saw anything I thought I needed t o , I 

would. 

Q. So i f you saw anything from your v e h i c l e as you 

were d r i v i n g through? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. How o f t e n d i d t h a t happen? 

A. Not very o f t e n . 

Q. So t h a t means you weren't out t h e r e on s i t e 

p h y s i c a l l y walking the property very often? 
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A. Not every day, no. 

Q. Okay. Well, the question was how o f t e n , s i r ? 

A. Well, I would make sure t h a t I went out t h e r e a t 

l e a s t t w i c e a week, through t h a t area. 

Q. Okay. Well, I want t o be c l e a r because there's 

some confusion i n my mind about what i t means t o be out 

t h e r e . Part of your testimony was t h a t you would d r i v e 

through the s i t e ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's r i g h t , I drove through i t . 

Q. And t h a t on occasion you would see something t h a t 

caught your a t t e n t i o n and you'd stop? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. And you'd get o f f of your v e h i c l e and a c t u a l l y 

walk onto the w e l l s i t e ? 

A. Yeah, I d i d . 

Q. So my question i s , how o f t e n d i d you a c t u a l l y do 

t h a t , where you were a c t u a l l y walking on the w e l l s i t e 

because something caught your a t t e n t i o n ? 

A. I can't say how o f t e n something caught my 

a t t e n t i o n . I t was when i t d i d catch my a t t e n t i o n t h a t I 

would get out. 

Q. Okay. But your testimony e a r l i e r was t h a t you 

would do t h a t l i k e maybe twice a week? 

A. Well, I d i d d r i v e through t h e r e t w i c e a week, but 

t h a t d i d n ' t mean I got out and looked a t i t t w i c e a week. 
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Q. Okay, thanks. 

You t e s t i f i e d t h a t Ralph Lowe and Maralo were 

d i f f e r e n t companies? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Was Mr. Lowe operating t h i s w e l l i n d i v i d u a l l y , 

k i n d of as a sole p r o p r i e t o r , or was he incorp o r a t e d i n t o 

an a c t u a l formal company or corporation? Do you know t h a t ? 

A. I can't answer t h a t question as t o what i s — He 

owned Ralph Lowe Estates, Ralph Lowe, and then i t went i n t o 

the Ralph Lowe Estates a f t e r he died, and i t stayed i n the 

Estates u n t i l Maralo — somehow or another they got i t 

changed over. I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h how t h a t happened. 

Q. Do you know who Mary Lowe is? 

A. Yes, I know who Mary Lowe i s . 

Q. And who i s she? 

A. His daughter. 

Q. Okay. And do you know whether Mary Lowe has any 

— or a t the time t h a t Maralo was created, do you know what 

Mary Lowe's r e s p o n s i b i l i t y or r e l a t i o n s h i p t o Maralo, I n c . , 

was? 

A. No, I can't answer t h a t question. 

Q. Do you know whether she was an o f f i c e r of the 

corporation? 

A. I can't answer t h a t because I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h 

i t , I don't know. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. Okay. Do you know whether Ralph Lowe remained an 

o f f i c e r — 

A. He died i n '65. 

Q. I n '65, okay. Were there any s u r v i v i n g c h i l d r e n ? 

A. No. 

Q. So r e a l l y , even though you know t h a t t he w e l l 

went from being operated by Ralph Lowe t o then being 

operated by Maralo, Inc., you r e a l l y don't know e x a c t l y how 

t h a t t r a n s i t i o n was made? 

A. I was not involved i n t h a t , I don't know. I 

can't t e s t i f y t o t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Do you know when t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l was 

plugged and abandoned by Maralo? 

A. The Number 3? 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. The Number 3 was plugged i n — w e l l , I was not 

working i n t h a t company, I was already — w e l l , no, I was 

working f o r them too. 1988 i s when i t was plugged. 

Q. Okay. At t h a t time were you s t i l l employed by 

Maralo, Inc.? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay, but c e r t a i n l y not i n a produ c t i o n 

c a p a c i t y — 

A. Not i n production, I was i n d r i l l i n g . 

Q. And you went from production t o d r i l l i n g i n 1981? 
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A. Yes, i n 1981, yes. 

Q. So c e r t a i n l y f o r those l a s t seven years of 

ope r a t i o n , from 1981 t o 1988, you d i d not have any 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o oversee the operation of t h a t well? 

A. No, no. 

MR. SANDOVAL: I have nothing f u r t h e r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Just a couple of questions, 

Mr. Hunt. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Do you r e c a l l how many w e l l s were served by t h a t 

tank b a t t e r y ? 

A. There were several there t h a t we had. I t h i n k 

the S h e l l State A water went down t h e r e , and p o s s i b l y 

another w e l l up th e r e , I don't remember now what — I t was 

Humble — Humphries, Humphries Number 1, went down t h e r e . 

Q. So there was two or three — 

A. Well, and — there was — That made th r e e w e l l s , 

S h e l l State A, Humble State Number 3 and the Humphries. 

Q. Okay, so three w e l l s going i n t o t h a t b a t t e r y ? 

A. Well, no, no, they d i d n ' t go i n t o the b a t t e r y . 

The water was c a r r i e d down th e r e . 

Q. The water — 

A. The Humphries has i t s own tank b a t t e r y f o r the 

o i l . 
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Q. Okay. 

A. And the S h e l l State had a tank b a t t e r y i n s i d e 

t h a t Humble State f o r i t s o i l . So i t was not a — I t was a 

combination b a t t e r y f o r two d i f f e r e n t leases, the S h e l l 

State and the Humble State. 

Q. Okay, and the water from these w e l l s was 

separated — Did you have separating equipment on the 

lo c a t i o n ? 

A. We had separating equipment up on the Humphries 

t h a t separated the o i l and water. The water went down 

th e r e and went i n t o a disposal w e l l — or went i n t o a 

di s p o s a l w e l l down there. As long as we had the p i t s up — 

the p i t r u l e s , why, we wasn't p u t t i n g the Humphries down 

t h e r e . 

Q. Okay. Before the disposal w e l l came on l i n e , the 

water, the produced water was j u s t — was i t being piped 

down t o the p i t ? 

A. I t was piped t o the p i t , yeah. 

Q. From a l l t h ree of those wells? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. Okay. Was i t a l o t of produced water? Do you 

r e c a l l ? 

A. We had q u i t e a b i t o f f of the Humble State, 

because we had a submersible pump i n i t . 

Q. Okay. And you t e s t i f i e d i t was hard t o separate 
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the o i l , so you d i d have —• 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. — a p r e t t y good percentage of o i l i n t h a t water? 

A. A good b i t of o i l i n t h a t water, and i t would 

c o l l e c t on the p i t , and when i t d i d , enough t h a t we could, 

w e l l , we'd p u l l i t o f f . That's a l l you can do. 

Q. But you couldn't get a l l of i t ? 

A. No, you can't get a l l of i t . 

Q. Right. And you went t o work i n 1955 f o r Mr. 

Lowe? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Now, t h i s w e l l was d r i l l e d i n the mid-1940s? 

A. That's what the records show. I'm not f a m i l i a r 

w i t h i t , other than what the records show. 

Q. So as f a r as you know, when you came t o work t h a t 

was how they had been doing t h i n g s before you came t o work 

f o r them; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. Okay, they had j u s t been disposing water i n t o 

those p i t s ? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. As f a r as you know? 

A. As f a r as I know, yeah. 

Q. Okay. And you don't have any knowledge of what 

the c h l o r i d e content of t h a t water was, Mr. Lowe? 
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A. No, I'm sure I couldn't t e l l you, other than the 

f a c t i t was not r e a l l y s a l t y , because i t would freeze r e a l 

e a s i l y . I f you had a l i n e l a y i n g out t h e r e , i f you s p i l l e d 

some on the ground, i t was f r e e z i n g weather, i t would 

freeze r i g h t t h e r e . 

And t h a t was the reason i t was hard t o separate, 

because the s a l i n i t y of i t was so low t h a t , you know, o i l 

and water w i l l separate b e t t e r i f you've got a higher 

concentrate of s a l t i n i t . 

Q. Now, these w e l l s , I t h i n k according t o the 

records, were producing from the Jalmat Gas Pool; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? Or Jalmat O i l Pool? 

A. Seven Rivers, yeah. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I 

have of t h i s witness. 

Anything else? 

MR. STRANGE: No, s i r . 

MS. MacQUESTEN: 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MacQUESTEN: 

Q. Could I j u s t ask — I'm s o r r y , Mr. Humphries — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — I was a l i t t l e confused about the tank 

b a t t e r i e s . Was there a tank b a t t e r y i n place when you were 
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working f o r Mr. Lowe and then — 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. — f o r Maralo? 

And what were the tanks used f o r ? 

A. And when I went t o work f o r Maralo? 

Q. (Nods) 

A. No, when I went t o work f o r Maralo I don't know 

about the tanks t h e r e , because I moved t o Midland i n 1981, 

and I t h i n k Maralo took over i n 1974. Yeah, the tank 

b a t t e r i e s was the r e . There was two 500-barrel tanks, two 

2 50-bar r e l tanks, s e t t i n g i n t h a t one tank area. 

Q. And what d i d they contain? 

A. O i l . 

Q. Oil? And from which wells? 

A. Well, the two 500s was f o r the o i l from the 

Humble State Number 3, and the two 250s was from the S h e l l 

State A. 

Q. What was done w i t h the tank bottoms from those 

tank b a t t e r i e s , do you know? 

A. When we had t o have a tank cleaned, when i t got 

t o where the p i p e l i n e would not run i t , we'd c a l l t he 

t r u c k i n g o u t f i t out there t o come out the r e and clean the 

tank. 

Q. What d i d they do w i t h the tank bottoms? 

A. I'm not sure what they d i d w i t h the tanks, tank 
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bottoms. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: I don't have any other 

questions. Thank you. 

MR. STRANGE: One question 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STRANGE: 

Q. Did they dispose of those tank bottoms on the 

lo c a t i o n ? 

A. No. No, they hauled them o f f - l o c a t i o n . 

MR. STRANGE: Okay. 

MR. SANDOVAL: Mr. Examiner, you mentioned 

something I hadn't heard before. I j u s t have one — two 

follo w - u p questions. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Go ahead. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. SANDOVAL: 

Q. You t e s t i f i e d j u s t i n response t o Ms. 

MacQuesten's l a s t question t h a t — or you mentioned a 

p i p e l i n e when i t wasn't working. What p i p e l i n e are you 

r e f e r r i n g to? 

A. When i t wasn't working? 

Q. You said there was a p i p e l i n e out t h e r e t h a t a t 

times would not work. 

A. No, I d i d n ' t say the p i p e l i n e wouldn't work. You 

must have misunderstood me, because I d i d n ' t say the 
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p i p e l i n e d i d n ' t work. 

Q. Was the r e a p i p e l i n e out there associated w i t h 

t h i s w e l l s i t e ? 

A. There was an o i l l i n e t h a t c a r r i e d the o i l away 

from i t . 

Q. And t h a t was p a r t of Maralo's o p e r a t i o n of t h a t 

w e l l ? 

A. No, i t had nothing t o do w i t h t h a t . No, i t had 

nothing t o do w i t h t h a t . O i l was sold t o an o i l buyer, and 

when i t went out of the tank we had nothing t o do w i t h i t 

from t h a t p o i n t on. 

Q. But you would place the o i l t h a t you d r i l l e d from 

your w e l l i n t o t h a t p i p e l i n e f o r someone else? 

A. For somebody else, yes. 

MR. SANDOVAL: Okay. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I'm so r r y , I've j u s t got two 

more, then w e ' l l l e t you go. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. The w e l l t h a t was d r i l l e d — or the w e l l t h a t you 

s t a r t e d u t i l i z i n g i n 1968, a disposal w e l l — 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — was t h a t Maralo's well? 

A. I t was Maralo's w e l l . I t was d r i l l e d f o r an o i l 

w e l l and i t wasn't worth producing, so i t was never 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

107 

produced, very much anyhow. And then when t h a t r u l i n g — 

when the State come up w i t h the r u l i n g t h a t we could not 

use p i t s anymore, then we made a disposal w e l l out of i t . 

Q. Do you r e c a l l what the name of t h a t w e l l was, 

s i r ? 

A. Humble State Number 1. 

Q. That was the Humble State Number 1. Was i t 

f a i r l y close t o t h i s s i t e ? 

A. Oh, yeah, i t was — I couldn't say e x a c t l y how 

f a r . Probably 400 f e e t , 400 or 500 f e e t from... 

Q. Okay. And from t h a t p o i n t on when t h a t d i s p o s a l 

w e l l was d r i l l e d and converted t o di s p o s a l , no a d d i t i o n a l 

water was placed i n t o the p i t s a t t h a t — 

A. No. 

Q. — from t h a t p o i n t on? 

A. No, not since 1968 when we made a d i s p o s a l w e l l 

out of the Number 1. 

Q. And you r e t i r e d from Maralo i n what year, s i r ? 

A. N i n e t y - s i x . 

Q. 1996? 

A. Yeah. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Thank you, t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

MR. STRANGE: We have no a d d i t i o n a l testimony or 

evidence. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Really. 
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(Laughter) 

MR. KELLAHIN: Don't you want t o go home, David? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I'm j u s t s u r p r i s e d . 

MR. STRANGE: Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s i t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

MR. SANDOVAL: Well, I ' l l f o l l o w t h a t lead. I do 

have some, but I ' l l make i t very s h o r t . I ' d l i k e t o 

c a l l --

EXAMINER CATANACH: Do you have a witness? 

MR. SANDOVAL: I ' d l i k e t o c a l l Jay Anthony. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

JAY S. ANTHONY. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. SANDOVAL: 

Q. Please s t a t e your name f o r the record. 

A. Jay S. Anthony. 

Q. And where do you l i v e , Mr. Anthony? 

A. J a l , New Mexico. 

Q. And you're the person t h a t f i l e d the complaint 

w i t h the OCD regarding t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s i t e and 

b a t t e r y — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — t h a t we've been t a l k i n g about, c o r r e c t ? 
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What do you do i n t h a t area of New Mexico? 

A. I'm a cow/calf operator. I ranch t h a t country 

r i g h t t h e r e . 

Q. How large i s your ranch, s i r ? 

A. Approximately 20,000 acres. 

Q. And how long have you owned t h a t ranch? 

A. Solely, since 1994. 

Q. How many head of c a t t l e do you c u r r e n t l y run, on 

the average, on t h a t property? 

A. On the average we run around 2 50 head. 

Q. You t e s t i f i e d , I t h i n k , t h a t you've owned i t 

s o l e l y since about 1994. What was your a s s o c i a t i o n w i t h 

the ranch p r i o r t o t h a t ? 

A. I was i n partners w i t h my b r o t h e r , and before 

t h a t my granddad owned i t . 

Q. How long — Well, when d i d your granddad f i r s t 

a cquire the property? 

A. I n the 1950s. 

Q. And what k i n d of operation d i d he run on t h a t 

ranch? C a t t l e as well? 

A. C a t t l e , c a t t l e operation. 

Q. Where d i d you — when — you grew up — Where d i d 

you grow up? 

A. I grew up i n Monahans, Texas. 

Q. And when d i d you f i r s t have occasion t o come t o 
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r e s i d e on the ranch? 

A. I moved t o J a l i n 1985. 

Q. And were you aware a t t h a t time of the o i l and 

gas operations t h a t were being conducted o n - s i t e by Maralo? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. Can you describe f o r me what you r e c a l l about 

t h a t p o i n t i n time? 

A. Describe the w e l l s or the — 

Q. Yeah, how many w e l l s do you r e c a l l Maralo — 

A. Well, I r e c a l l t h a t they had a b i g b a t t e r y s i t e , 

which i s the one i n question, on the n o r t h side — on the 

south side of the road, there were fo u r 250-barrel tanks. 

And on the n o r t h side of the road t h e r e was a separator and 

another water l e g , on the n o r t h side. 

Q. And t h a t i s a l l associated w i t h the w e l l and tank 

b a t t e r y t h a t • s — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — t h a t was i n i t i a l l y here, c o r r e c t ? 

A. And the w e l l s were j u s t s c a t t e r e d out through the 

lease. 

Q. About how many w e l l s t o t a l ? Do you know? 

A. Four or f i v e on my property. 

Q. Okay. Do you have any s p e c i f i c r e c o l l e c t i o n 

about the operation of those w e l l s , and p a r t i c u l a r l y t h i s 

w e l l t h a t ' s a t issue here i n terms o f , you know, how i t may 
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have impacted the land a t t h a t p o i n t i n time w h i l e t he 

w e l l s were a c t u a l l y being d r i l l e d ? 

A. You have t o re-ask i t . 

Q. Do you r e c a l l any accidents, s p i l l s or t h i n g s of 

t h a t s o r t t h a t may have occurred on t h i s s i t e ? 

A. There were signs of s p i l l s o f f t h a t w e l l , yes, 

and they're s t i l l t here today. 

Q. What can you t e l l me about those? 

A. Well, they're j u s t o i l y d i r t t h a t i t ran over or 

— and ran out through the — o f f the l o c a t i o n , and i t ' s 

s t i l l on the l o c a t i o n and o f f . 

Q. Okay. I n a l i t t l e b i t w e ' l l have you go through 

a couple of photographs here, but you r e c a l l t h a t the w e l l 

a t issue was plugged and abandoned i n about 1988, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you receive n o t i c e from — formal n o t i c e from 

Maralo, t h a t t h i s was happening? 

A. No. 

Q. When d i d you f i r s t come t o determine t h a t t h e r e 

was a problem w i t h the abandoned s i t e t h e r e t h a t caused you 

concern? 

A. Well, they abandoned the s i t e , they went i n and 

t o r e down the — took a l l the tanks and the b a t t e r y down. 

They l e f t the bottom p a r t of the tank, the metal p a r t . I 

t h i n k they had a salvage crew or something come i n and take 
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them out. And they l e f t the flow l i n e s i n , and they were 

— some were bu r i e d , some were on the top of the ground. 

They're s t i l l t h e r e . 

Q. What do you mean by a flow l i n e ? 

A. A flow l i n e t h a t took water from the water l e g t o 

the d i s p o s a l , and o i l from the — maybe from — o i l from 

the w e l l s t o the battery? 

MR. SANDOVAL: May I approach, your Honor? I 

mean, Mr. Examiner? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: (Nods) 

MR. SANDOVAL: I s t h a t an example of one of the 

fl o w l i n e s t h a t you're t e s t i f y i n g about? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And where i s t h a t located i n r e l a t i o n t o 

the l o c a t i o n of the p i t areas? 

A. I t w i l l be on the nor t h side of the road. 

Q. And are there other spots on your p r o p e r t y t h a t 

— on which you see the exposed fl o w l i n e s — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — as well? 

A. This p a r t i c u l a r l i n e crosses the road and goes 

across the p i t area t o the — I t h i n k i t ' s the Humble 

Number 1 where they made the disposal w e l l . 

Q. And t o your knowledge, t h a t ' s a f l o w l i n e t h a t 

was being u t i l i z e d by Maralo i n t h e i r o p e r a t i o n of t h i s 
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p a r t i c u l a r property? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Let me show you another photograph, Mr. Anthony, 

and have you describe what t h a t photograph d e p i c t s f o r the 

Hearing Examiner, please. 

A. This p i c t u r e was taken on the west side of the 

northwest corner of the p i t area. This i s showing one of 

the p i t s and the c r u s t y asphaltine around i t . 

Q. Okay. Can you please k i n d of describe t o the 

Hearing Examiner what s o r t of impacts the presence of the 

contamination on your property has on your o p e r a t i o n as a 

c a t t l e rancher? 

A. Well, I'm not able t o use t h i s p r o p e r t y f o r 

anything. I can't grow grass on i t , I can't use i t f o r 

r e c r e a t i o n , f o r enjoyment. I can't use i t f o r anything. I 

can't grow anything on i t . 

Can I go back t o t h i s photo r i g h t here? 

Q. Sure. 

A. Y o u ' l l see the p i t s , i n the f a r background on 

t h a t p i c t u r e y o u ' l l see where the b a t t e r y s a t , and I have 

some photographs of where the b a t t e r y was. A l l t h i s , the 

b a t t e r y s i t e and these p i t s a l l connect t o g e t h e r . They're 

a l l connected. 

Q. I s t h i s a photograph of the b a t t e r y s i t e ? 

A. No, t h i s i s a i r r e l i e f on the f l o w l i n e t h a t went 
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t o the d i s p o s a l . 

MR. SANDOVAL: Let me then — I ' l l t e l l you what, 

I don't t h i n k I have anything f u r t h e r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. Any cross-examination 

of t h i s witness? 

MR. STRANGE: No, s i r . 

MS. MacQUESTEN: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, I don't have anything. 

This witness may be excused. 

What else? I s t h a t i t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I know i t ' s l a t e . Would you l i k e 

us t o submit d r a f t orders f o r you? And by t h a t way you 

would have our p o i n t of view and have i t w r i t i n g . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: That would be appreciated, i f 

you would do t h a t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t h i n k we're ready t o stop. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. I'm ready t o stop too. 

Okay, there being nothing f u r t h e r i n t h i s case, 

Case 13,142 w i l l be taken under advisement. 

MS. MacQUESTEN: Do we have a deadline on the 

d r a f t orders? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: T h i r t y days. 

6:25 p.m.) 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 
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